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Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

Dong Haoran E# %
Chairman *J&

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
China Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited
(the “Company”), | hereby report that for the year
2020 the Company together with its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) achieved a sales revenue of HK$1,324.6
million, representing a decrease of 21.9% when
comparing with last year, the loss attributable to
shareholders of the Company was HK$1,013.3 million,
as compared to a profit of HK$155.2 million of last
year. The loss for the year was primarily attributable
to a one-off loss of HK$1,080.9 million arising from
the disposal of 33.67% of the issued share capital of
China Electronics Optics Valley Union Holding Company
Limited ("CEOVU"). Basic loss per share was HK49.92
cents.

o~

RAANBERRFPEEFERBEERAA (AR
ANEFES([EEFL])EM  2020F AR 7 R H
WBAR ([AEE]) BERHEEWA,324.688%8
T REF TIE21.9% ' RARIRRIEMGEIES
1,013388% Tt MEFE AaF15528 88
T AFENEETZERANEFREARBE S TR
ERAB([FEXA]) 233.67%EHITRAE
A7 —RMEE1E1,080.98 BB - BARER
E518 B349.9278 1l -
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In 2020, with the tremendous assistance from the
Company’s ultimate controlling shareholder, China
Electronics Corporation Limited (“CEC”) and through
its unsecured guarantee support, the Company
successfully raised RMB1,590.0 million new unsecured
short-term bank borrowings to repay its existing
unsecured short-term bank borrowings.

On 30 July 2020, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to dispose of 33.67% of the issued
share capital of CEOVU to a subsidiary of CEC at a price
of HK$0.7 per CEOVU ordinary share for a consideration
of HK$1,785.0 million (the "“Disposal”). The price
of HK$0.7 per CEOVU ordinary share represents a
premium of approximately 40% over the closing price
of CEOVU ordinary share as quoted on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 29 July 2020. The
Disposal lays an important foundation for the Group's
business reorganisation and will be beneficial to the
Group’s business and development in the future. The
Disposal was completed in November 2020 and the
financial resources realised by the Disposal were used to
strengthen the financial position of the Group.

Looking ahead, it is expected that the impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic on the overall integrated circuits
market will be reduced in 2021 with gradual recovery
of market demand. The integrated circuits industry in
general is expected to maintain stable development,
and the domestic integrated circuits design industry
and market development will further gain momentum.
With the further advancement of the application of
domestic integrated circuits and the application of
the state cryptographic algorithm, as well as the rapid
development of the 5G and Internet of Things market
boosting and raising the demand for information
security, there will be market opportunities for the
Group’s business. Due to the tight production capacity
of semiconductors around the world, it is expected
that safeguarding production capacities will become a
challenge for the Group’s operation. In the face of both
opportunities and challenges, the Group will continue
to closely monitor domestic market demand, further
strengthen close cooperation with suppliers, seize
market opportunities and actively engage potential
customers to ensure its leading position in the smart
card chips sector.

Chairman’s Statement

ERHRE
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

On the other hand, leveraging on security chips design
and application technologies accumulated over the
years, the Group will continue to strengthen product
development in security chips for the Internet of
Things sector, and promote products application in the
industry with a market-oriented approach. The Group
will continue to build up its core competitiveness in the
Internet of Things market by increasing its expansion in
industries such as Internet of Vehicles, smart cities and
smart home as well as maintaining its market leadership
in innovation and products.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all
staff members for their contributions and efforts in the
past year. | would also like to express our most sincere
gratitude to our shareholders and business partners for
their continuing co-operation and support.

Dong Haoran
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021

Z—TH ARERERZEFBRENZE2TR &R
SRR - A5 RER - &E R Y S
RECRAANERASE EPERETENE
B MAEERE S2HM E2EREFTE
MR RITFEIFSIE  EmBLMBA - TERE
HAREBEYMBET SR LR -

K& AABRREFTES  YRFzRACES
E-—FNFHTEEIEL DR RO EH -
WHEMBREAEBHRBIAKRN G IEE R
REHE

TE
BEEAR

EF7% 0 202138300
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW
Results overview

Revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020 amounted to HK$1,324.6 million, representing
a decrease of 21.9% when comparing with last year.
Loss attributable to owners of the Company amounted
to HK$1,013.3 million, as compared to a profit of
HK$155.2 million of last year. The loss for the year was
primarily attributable to a one-off loss of HK$1,080.9
million arising from the disposal of 33.67% of the
issued share capital of CEOVU. Basic loss per share was
HK49.92 cents (2019: basic earnings per share was
HK7.64 cents).

Integrated circuits design operation

The Group’s integrated circuits design operation
comprises the design of security smart card chips and
the development of application system. Currently,
the Group’s products are mainly used in the sector of
identity authentication, financial payment, government
utilities and telecommunication. For the year ended
31 December 2020, the Group has obtained 19 new
patents and registered 15 new integrated circuits layout
designs.

The year of 2020 has seen many complex and volatile
situations internationally. Demand in the smart cards
industry declined due to the impact of the global
COVID-19 pandemic. On the other hand, demand for
security chips grew steadily, due to the rising demand
for information security with the development of the
Internet of Things industry.

BEEEFWRE DM
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERENWE DN

In 2020, due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic,
crowd control in medical institutions and restrictions
on the resumption of work and production in various
industries were implemented during the pandemic,
resulting in a plunge in market demand for social
security cards. The sales volume of social security card
chips decreased significantly when comparing with
last year. The sales volume of telecommunication card
chips also decreased when comparing with last year as
demand in overseas markets declined as a consequence
of the pandemic. Despite the slight increase in the
sales volume of bank card chips during the year,
the rate of growth was visibly slower. Product prices
also continued to fall due to intensified competition.
The sales volume of identity authentication products
remained almost the same as last year. During the
year, the Group continued to expand the application of
security chips in the Internet of Things industry, and the
sales volume of such security chip products increased
when comparing with last year. For the year ended
31 December 2020, the Group’s total sales volume
decreased by 17.4% when comparing with last year.
The Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December
2020 amounted to HK$1,324.6 million, representing a
decrease of 21.9% when comparing with last year.

In 2020, to manage the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic, the Group adjusted the product mix of its
smart card chips business and focused on products with
a better gross profit margin, implemented stringent
cost control measures, and had successfully offset the
impact of the decline in the selling price of some of
the smart card chip products on the overall gross profit
margin. Overall gross profit margin has increased by
2.4 percentage points to 34.0% for the year ended 31
December 2020.

208 ZHATRRSRBTE  BEMBER
W BITERBHRNEIEESIIRG  E%L
SRERMSHERRE TR L 2RERSHE
EEREFAB IR -BEEFRLAFEARBER
BHINTIBER K TR BEEROCAHEELRESF
EFTR -BEAFASR TR HEE R ML
K- EERPENE  EREETARFNEF
BTHK - BHOHFERHESEAEFEARAFF -
FRAEBEENRZENFEDHBITED
JER  EREHEEREFTEMEER - #{22020F
NANBLEFE  AEEAHESREFTRT
17.4% - REBEHE2020F12A31B IEFERNK
AB1,3246B8BL  WEFTE21.9% °

2020F BEBHAERRSRBETRNTE K
EE—FHEAREEERLFEBZEREE
VTEIFITRABREEFNXRZER S—FENE
e B AR A AR B HE i 0 AKID RS T BB B e
SRFEREETHHEERBENEXZEE HE
2020F12A31H L FE M EBEFN X L H2.4(E
BN ZE34.0% °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Selling and marketing costs for the year ended 31
December 2020 amounted to HK$73.9 million (2019:
HK$83.2 million). The percentage of selling and
marketing costs to revenue increased to 5.6% from
4.9% last year. The increase was mainly attributable
to the fact that the progress achieved through the
continuous implementation of stringent cost control
measures by the Group during the year was more than
offset by the loss of revenue due to the COVID-19
pandemic.

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31
December 2020 amounted to HK$319.8 million (2019:
HK$345.8 million). The percentage of administrative
expenses to revenue increased to 24.1% from 20.4%
last year. The increase was mainly attributable to the
fact that the progress achieved through the continuous
implementation of stringent cost control measures by
the Group during the year was more than offset by the
loss of revenue due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Research and development costs for the year
ended 31 December 2020 amounted to HK$212.0
million (2019: HK$221.7 million). The percentage
of research and development costs to revenue was
16.0% (2019: 13.1%). Research and development of
the Group during the year primarily focused on the
research and development of security chip products
as well as the continuous improvements in smart
card product performance, enhancement of product
security certification level, research in application of
security chips in the Internet of Things sector and the
development of application systems and solutions.

BEEEFWRE DM
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERENWE DN

Other income

Government grants recognised as income increased
by 107.3% to HK$21.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 resulted from more government
subsidies received for research and development costs
incurred in the year.

Share of result of an associate

CEOVU, an associate of the Group with its shares
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
is principally engaged in the development of theme
industrial parks in the PRC and related businesses.
The Group disposed of its entire interest in CEOVU on
27 November 2020. The Group’'s share of result from
CEOVU for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
HK$90.2 million (2019: HK$120.2 million).

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

The Group consistently employs a prudent treasury
policy and generally finances its working capital and
funding requirements through internal resources, and
bank and other borrowings. At 31 December 2020,
the Group had cash and cash equivalents amounted to
HK$465.4 million, of which 95.3% was denominated
in Renminbi, 2.9% in Hong Kong dollars and 1.8% in
United States dollars (2019: HK$350.2 million, of which
97.0% was denominated in Renminbi, 2.3% in United
States dollars and 0.7% in Hong Kong dollars).

At 31 December 2020, the Group had bank and other
borrowings of HK$712.3 million, all have a maturity
period of within one year, and all were denominated
in Renminbi (2019: HK$2,188.0 million, all have a
maturity period of within one year, and all were
denominated in Renminbi). Among these borrowings,
(i) HK$58.8 million were secured by deposits of the
Group and HK$653.5 million were unsecured (2019:
all were unsecured), and (ii) all were borrowed at fixed
interest rates (2019: all were borrowed at fixed interest
rates). At 31 December 2020, committed borrowing
facilities available to the Group but not drawn
amounted to HK$950.1 million.

HA WA

BARAEE LA =2020F12A31 B It FEZEAM
RERFBEKANES ZRAF/MENEN - FAEER
BWAZBF#E EF107.3% 221 1TAEB T °

B —BBEQXTRE

BHA  AEEN—MHBELQR  ERORE
BHMARSGMERAR LT TERFBENYEE
BEFXEEMMEREBEER - R2020F11H27
H AEBEHEERTFEXLANDHBELZE - K
EBEEE2020F12A31A L EEEETELALZ
BRI 2HEEHSIT (2019F 120288 7TT) °

BBEREARBDES

AEE-ERARENERBRRERBERANRNI
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R2020F12A318  AEERFEREEREE
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2.9% LA T M 1.8% AZE TR A (20194 : 350.2
BEBT  DRIBAITO%UARE - 23%IUET
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B EMEREE) - R2020612 8318 » XEE 4
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group's revenue are mainly denominated in
Renminbi and payments are denominated in Renminbi
and Hong Kong dollars. The Group will make use of
hedging contracts, when appropriate, to hedge the
risk of foreign exchange fluctuation arising from its
operations.

At 31 December 2020, the Group had net current
assets of HK$916.4 million (2019: net current liabilities
of HK$814.5 million). At 31 December 2020, the
Group was in net cash position. The gearing ratio at 31
December 2019, which is calculated as net debt divided
by total equity and net debt of the Group, was 41.2%.

MATERIAL DISPOSAL
CEOVU

On 27 November 2020, the Group completed the
disposal of 33.67% of the issued share capital of
CEOVU for a consideration of HK$1,785.0 million and
recognised a loss of HK$1,080.9 million. CEOVU ceased
to be an associate of the Group since then. CEOVU
is principally engaged in the development of theme
industrial parks in the PRC and related businesses.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2020, certain assets of the Group
with an aggregate carrying value of HK$59.4 million
were pledged as collateral for borrowings of the Group
(2019: the Group did not pledge any assets as collateral
for its borrowings).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any
material outstanding capital commitment (2019: nil) for
the acquisition of fixed assets and intangible assets. The
Group did not have any material contingent liability at
31 December 2020 (2019: nil).

BEEEFWRE DM
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERENWE DN

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

At 31 December 2020, the Group had approximately
380 employees, the majority of whom were based in
the PRC. Employee benefit expenses for the year were
HK$181.0 million.

The Group recognises the importance of high calibre
and competent staff and has a strict recruitment policy
and performance appraisal scheme. Remuneration
policies are largely in line with industry practices,
and are formulated on the basis of performance and
experience and will be reviewed regularly. Bonuses and
other merit payments are linked with the performance
of the Group and of the individuals as incentive to
optimise performance.

The Group’s employee training is divided into three
levels, corporate level, departmental level and
individual level. The corporate level trainings focus
mainly on cross-departmental and internal all-purpose
training, such as new employee training, and quality
and safety requirements training. Departmental level
trainings focus mainly on enhancing knowledge and
skills in departmental professional areas. Trainings for
individuals act as a useful supplement to the above
two.

1B & & % B BUR

7R2020F 128318 X5 EERB 380K EE -
REHORFPBEAETIE - AEEREEBNFAZ A
181.0B&8BIT -

AEBEERINEFAT MEBREENEEN - I
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The Company is committed to achieving the best
corporate governance practices by emphasising
its accountability, transparency, independence,
responsibility and fairness. The Company is dedicated
to exercise corporate governance through regular
reviews of its adopted practices with reference to the
Corporate Governance Code (the “"CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company has complied with all the applicable
code provisions in the CG Code as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules throughout the year ended
31 December 2020, except for a deviation from code
provision E.1.2 of the CG Code as summarised in the
section headed ”Attendance Record at Meetings” of
this report. The following summarises the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company.

THE BOARD

As at 31 December 2020, the Board consisted of
two executive directors, two non-executive directors
and three independent non-executive directors. The
roles of the chairman of the Board are segregated
from the managing director. The chairman of the
Board is responsible for leading and overseeing the
functioning of the Board and the strategic development
of the Group. The managing director is delegated
with the authority and responsibility for managing
the Group’s business, and the implementation of the
Group’s strategies in achieving the overall business
objectives. Throughout the year ended 31 December
2020, the position of the chairman of the Board and
the managing director were not held by the same
individual. As at 31 December 2020, the position
of the chairman of the Board and the managing
director were held separately by Mr. Dong Haoran
and Mr. Liu Hongzhou, respectively. Such division of
responsibilities helps to reinforce their independence
and accountability. There are no financial, business,
family or other material relationships among the
directors (including the chairman of the Board and the
managing director).

Corporate Governance Report
TRERHRS
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Corporate Governance Report
EEEARRE

All the directors, including the non-executive directors,
will be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
every three years in accordance with the Listing Rules
and the bye-laws of the Company. The remuneration
of the directors are determined with reference to their
duties and to the prevailing market conditions.

The Board is responsible for the formulation of long
term business objectives, strategies and plans, and
to monitor and control the operating and financial
performance of the Group. The day-to-day operations
and implementation of business objectives are
delegated to the managing director. The management
is delegated with the necessary authority to manage
the daily operations and perform its duties.

The Board is also responsible for performing overall
corporate governance duties, including developing and
reviewing the Company’s corporate governance policy
and practice, reviewing and monitoring the training
and continuous professional development of directors
and senior management, reviewing and monitoring
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, developing,
reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
applicable to directors, and reviewing the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code. During the year, the
Board has performed all of the above functions.

The Board is responsible for appointing new directors
to fill any vacancy on the Board. The Company’s board
diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) sets out
the approach to achieve diversity within the Board.
Appointment of directors will be based on merit that
complements and expands the skills and experience
of the Board, and after due regard to factors which
include but is not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, and professional experience
towards achieving diversity within the Board. During
the year, the Board has reviewed the Board Diversity
Policy to ensure its continued effectiveness. The Board
considered that diversity within the Board has been
achieved as the Board is composed of director from a
diverse range of background.
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BET - BEZHFMH2RESENEERRTHN
mEE -

EXZ2RAFTRELERR KRBNEER - U
RERMBEAKENEEMMBERR - KEHA
FEERRELAENEEARBAESTAKLKESR
AR - EEECERTHEEN UEBEHELE
KMEITEEME-

EZENRERTTERBNEREREMRE B
ERBAARBNERERBRRRER B R
EREELmAEEAEBNEIRBEERHE
B BEMERARREETEREREERES
ERNBRREER  HIE B RERESFHNERT
SR R ARRBTERERTRMER
FAN -EFSETTAAMNA LB -

EEQRAEREHESNERHES S EME
R ARANEEZEXREZTERR(TEFENX
BZTBRRDSIRERESTEXEZ TN
RERZz et - ZEEZNEABERBRAAEN
THRECHALBEREFTSHRENER > LT
MEEZERAEZ  BRETERMER - Fi& X
ERBEER URBELEBAENEZTEKE
MZTL- R EECCENESTEKNESTT
EBR - ARETZAEM -EFERR BN
EZehREZTRAESNEREAN A DER
EFEXRBMZITIE-

14 China Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited Annual Report 2020



Corporate Governance Report

N\ Ak AN
TEERRE
An analysis of the composition of the Board at F2020F 12 A3 BMESEXEAKNS AT

31 December 2020 is set out in the following chart:

100%
Above 70 years old (14%
Executive TOBRSA E (14%) Integrated circuit industry
director (29%) experience (29%)
80% ﬁi}g;ﬁ/;)? No (42%) 61-70 years old (14%) ERRERETTHEIEH(29%)

= (42%) 61-705% (14%)

Company executive
(14%)

60%
Male (86%) a - )
F (86%) orpgraz i:ance %
51-60 years old (58%) RRAE (14%)
40% 51-605% (58%)
Yes (58%) Accounting (29%)
Independent
non itive
director (429
20%
Female (14% 41-50 years old (
41-50%% (1
0%
Gender Designation Connections with the Age group Expertise
Bl A parent company FieAa R BER
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All directors have actively participated in the review
and monitoring of the Company’s business. The Board
meets regularly and at least 4 times a year. Between
scheduled meetings, the senior management of the
Group provides information to the Board on a regular
basis regarding the activities and development in
the businesses of the Group. The directors have full
access to information on the Group and independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’'s expense. With respect to regular meetings
of the Board, the directors will be given written notice
of the meeting at least 14 days in advance and an
agenda with supporting Board papers no less than
3 days prior to the meeting. For other meetings,
directors will be given as much notice as is reasonable
and practicable in the circumstances. If a director has
a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be
material, the matter will be dealt with by a physical
Board meeting. Independent non-executive directors
who, and whose close associates, have no material
interest in the matter should be present at that Board
meeting. All minutes of Board and Board committee
meetings are kept by the company secretary of the
Company for record with sufficient details of the
matters considered and decisions reached by the
Board or Board committee(s), including any concerns
raised or dissenting views expressed by any director.
These minutes are available for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any director.
The attendance record of the directors at the general
meeting(s), Board and Board committee meetings held
in 2020 are set out on page 28 of this annual report.
Besides providing sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Group, all directors have disclosed to the
Company the number and nature of the offices held
in other public companies or organisations and other
significant commitments, and updated the Company
on any subsequent changes in a timely manner.
Appropriate insurance on directors’ liabilities are in
force to protect the directors from their risk exposure
arising from the business of the Group.
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EEHEHEE  EEFARELIHR -REH
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The directors acknowledge the need to continue EEMATERBLRUERN AT MNH R
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills AARATELHER - TRELVIZZEEN20205F
for making contributions to the Company. The MBEYEELMARNESEZAC  BEREEZ
participation by individual directors in the continuous BEEERRTE 22808
professional development programme with appropriate
emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a
director of a listed company in 2020 is set out in the
table below.
Attending
Reading external
regulatory seminars/
updates programmes
B & S ER
EERTE B
BHER WHE TH
Non-executive directors FHITES
Dong Haoran BER v v
Liu Jinmei £ s v v
Executive directors HITES
Yu Jian & 1% v v
Liu Hongzhou 24T M v/ v

Independent non-executive directors BIFHTES

Chan Kay Cheung PRIE S v/ v
Qiu Hongsheng 1> v/ v
Chow Chan Lum IR v v
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the company REZE2020F12A318IEFE  ARAIRAWE
secretary of the Company, Mr. Ng Kui Kwan, has taken HRPFFLEEE 2N DS/ NREBBBE -

no less than 15 hours of relevant training.
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THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF
LISTED ISSUERS (THE “MODEL CODE")

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules to regulate the
directors’ securities transactions. All directors have
confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company,
that they have fully complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.

REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION
COMMITTEE

As at 31 December 2020, the remuneration and
nomination committee comprised three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Qiu Hongsheng,
Mr. Chan Kay Cheung and Mr. Chow Chan Lum,
and an executive director Mr. Yu Jian. Mr. Qiu
Hongsheng is the chairman of the remuneration and
nomination committee. The terms of reference of
the remuneration and nomination committee, which
described its authority and duties, is available on the
website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(www.hkex.com.hk) and the website of the Company
(www.cecht.com.cn).

The principal responsibilities of the remuneration
and nomination committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
policy and the remuneration of the directors and the
senior management, reviewing and approving the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference
to the Board’'s corporate goals and objectives,
determining, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual executive director
and senior management, making recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive
directors, identifying and making recommendation to
the Board on possible appointees as directors, making
recommendations to the Board on matters relating to
appointment or re-appointment of directors, succession
planning for directors and assessing the independence
of the independent non-executive directors.
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The Company’s nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) sets out the criteria and procedures to be
adopted when considering candidates to be appointed
or re-appointed as director of the Company. A
summary of the nomination criteria of the Nomination
Policy is set out below:

(1) ability to contribute to the effective carrying out
by the Board of its responsibilities;

(2)  effect on the Board’s composition and diversity
in all its aspects, which includes but is not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, and professional experience;

(3) independence of the candidate; and
(4) commitment to devote sufficient time.

The Board will review the Nomination Policy on a
regular basis to ensure its continued effectiveness.

In making recommendations to the Board in respect
of the composition of the Board, the appointment,
re-appointment or removal of directors, the
remuneration and nomination committee will give
due regard to nomination criteria as set out in the
Nomination Policy.

During the year, the remuneration and nomination
committee held two meetings. The attendance record
of the committee members at these meetings are
set out on page 28 of this annual report. The work
performed by the remuneration and nomination
committee during the year included reviewing the
remuneration policy and the remuneration of the
directors and the senior management, assessing
performance of the executive directors, determining
the remuneration of the executive directors, reviewing
the policy for the nomination of directors, making
recommendation to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors, and assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive
directors.

Corporate Governance Report
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, the number
of senior management (excluding directors) whose
remuneration fell within the band from HK$1,000,001
up to HK$1,500,000 and from HK$1,500,001 up to
HK$2,000,000 were one and one respectively. Details of
the remuneration of the directors for the year ended 31
December 2020 are set out on pages 145 to 146 of this
annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

As at 31 December 2020, the audit committee
comprised three independent non-executive directors,
namely Mr. Chan Kay Cheung, Mr. Qiu Hongsheng
and Mr. Chow Chan Lum. Mr. Chan Kay Cheung is
the chairman of the audit committee. The members
have extensive experience in financial matters. The
terms of reference of the audit committee, which
described its authority and duties, is available on the
website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(www.hkex.com.hk) and the website of the Company
(www.cecht.com.cn).

The audit committee is responsible for providing
an independent review and supervision of financial
reporting, overseeing and conducting an annual review
of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group, and ensuring the
external auditor are independent and the effectiveness
of the audit process. The audit committee examines
all matters relating to the accounting principles and
policies adopted by the Group, auditing functions,
internal controls, risk management and financial
reporting. External auditor and the directors are
invited to attend the committee meetings as and when
necessary. The audit committee meets at least twice
a year with the external auditor. The audit committee
also serves as a channel of communication between the
Board and the external auditor.

During the year, the audit committee held two
meetings. The attendance record of the committee
members at these meetings are set out on page 28
of this annual report. The work performed by the
audit committee during the year included reviewing
the unaudited consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019, the
unaudited consolidated interim financial statements
of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2020
and the audit plan and approach of the external
auditor, monitoring the progress and results of the
audit regularly and reviewing the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems of the
Group.
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INTERNAL AUDIT

The Company’s audit department is responsible for
carrying out analysis and independent appraisal on
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems. The duties
of the department include:

o reviewing all key aspects of the Group’s activities
and internal controls;

o comprehensive audits of the practices, procedures,
expenditure and internal controls of all key
business and support units and subsidiaries on a
regular basis; and

e  special reviews of areas of concern identified by
the management or the audit committee.

The audit department reports directly to the audit
committee and has direct access to the Board through
the chairman of the audit committee. The audit
department may directly report to the audit committee
without consulting the management.

The audit department issued reports to senior
management covering various operational and
financial units of the Group. The audit department
also conducted reviews of major projects and contracts
as well as areas of concern, if any, identified by the
management.

Concerns which have been reported by the audit
department were monitored regularly by the
management and by the audit committee until
corrective measures have been implemented.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the fees
payable to the Company’s external auditor in respect of
audit and non-audit services provided to the Company
and its subsidiaries are set out below:

S BE % B AT

REE2020F 12831 B IEFE > BLARQ =) M HH
B AR ERENEZMIEEZRB R AR T INE
RHAEMMBRAEOT

2020
20205
HK$'000
TER

Audit services
Non-audit services

E R
IEEZIRTE 574

3,007

3,581

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation
of financial statements which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results
and cash flow during the reporting period. A statement
from the auditor about its responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements is set out on
pages 53 to 61 of this annual report. In preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020, the Board had selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently, had made
prudent and reasonable judgments and estimates and
prepared the financial statements on a going concern
basis.

The Board is overall responsible for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is
willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic
objectives, and maintaining appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems,
including reviewing their effectiveness annually. The
audit committee is delegated by the Board with the
responsibility to oversee independently the Group's
financial, risk management and internal control systems
and reports to the Board on the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems
annually.
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Appropriate policies and controls have been designed
and established for safeguarding assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, maintaining proper
financial and accounting records, ensuring compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, and identifying
and managing the key risks that may impact on the
Group’s performance. As the risk management and
internal control systems are designed to manage, rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, they can only be expected to provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The management is responsible for the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems, while
the audit committee oversees the actions of the
management and review the effectiveness of the
systems that have been put in place. Systems and
procedures are in place in the Group to identify,
control and report on major types of risk the Group
encounters. Operational units are responsible for
identifying the potential risks, and analysing and
evaluating the significance of such risks. Operational
units also assess the adequacy of existing controls
and implement treatment plans to mitigate such risks
and report the view of risks and proposal for the
enhancement of the existing systems and procedures
regularly to the audit committee, and ultimately to the
Board on major findings. The audit committee reviews
the existing risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis and makes appropriate
enhancement when necessary, with a view to improve
the effectiveness of such systems.

The Company has engaged SHINEWING Risk Services
Limited, an independent advisory firm, to conduct
an annual review of the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems for the
year ended 31 December 2020. The scope of review
included the internal control systems of the Group at
the entity level, as well as key business processes of its
principal subsidiary, CEC Huada Electronic Design Co.,
Ltd, covering key controls such as financial, operational
and compliance controls of the Group. The review
results have been reported to the audit committee and
the Board. The Board is satisfied that these systems
were effective and adequate throughout the year
ended 31 December 2020. In this regard, to enhance
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems, the Group has begun
to implement the recommendations put forward by
SHINEWING Risk Services Limited.
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The audit committee has also held discussion with
the Group’s external auditor, to ensure that a sound
internal control system is maintained and operated
by the management in compliance with the agreed
procedures and standards.

The Board has reviewed and ensured the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and the budget of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions.

The Board is responsible for the handling and
dissemination of inside information. The Company
has established and implemented procedures for the
handling and dissemination of inside information in
a timely manner so as to allow all the stakeholders
to apprehend the latest position of the Group. These
procedures and their effectiveness are subject to review
on a regular basis with reference to the Listing Rules,
the Securities and Futures Ordinance and in accordance
with established procedures.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene a
special general meeting

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws and the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, registered
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the registered
office of the Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda for the attention of
the Board or the company secretary of the Company
to require a special general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such special general meeting shall
be held within two months from the date of deposit of
such requisition.
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The written requisition must be signed by the registered
shareholders concerned and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more
of these shareholders. The written requisition will be
verified with the Company’s share registrars and upon
their confirmation that the requisition is proper and
in order, the company secretary of the Company will
ask the Board to convene a special general meeting
by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the
statutory and regulatory requirements to all the
registered shareholders. On the contrary, if the written
requisition has been verified as not in order, the
shareholders concerned will be advised of this outcome
and accordingly, a special general meeting will not be
convened as requested.

If within twenty one days from the date of deposit of
the requisition the Board fails to proceed to convene
a special general meeting, the requisitionists, or any
of them representing more than one half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene
a special general meeting, but any special general
meeting so convened shall be held within three months
from the date of deposit of such requisition.

Procedures for shareholders to put forward
proposals at a general meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda,
either any number of the registered shareholders
holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company, or not
less than 100 registered shareholders, can request the
Company in writing to (a) give to shareholders entitled
to receive notice of the next general meeting notice
of any resolution which may properly be moved and is
intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate
to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general
meeting any statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting.

Corporate Governance Report

TEERRE

EHBERVARFBAECRERE LA HHEND
REBRAMME-—RAER - RARRRRELZ
XA - %ﬁx*ﬂﬂﬁﬂﬁ?ﬂxﬁ’ina)ﬁ&%'

EHREREERTAEFR  ARBARMES
BREFEARRRFERIKRE iﬂﬂ%%i&%

ERTHTHASEREZTONBNE - k2 -
EEEMEREREATHTEARER  BEEREBE
HEER MBREBIRETITSREREH -

MEZEERENRZEZRKBHE -+ —HARRK
AREREIARE  HIZ2BA(REPREREE

%pﬁ/\%@%ﬁ%ﬁéﬁ%%(U\J:ZEﬂ/\i) AE1TA
FRESERIRS iRt AN B A TR ER
FIREENRESEERHHAL=THEARNEIT-

BRRARRASELREZRZER

BEBREIGIFRARNE  BEEEEARTR
RRERBEZARBBEHBRATIPR =_+H2—
(5%) 2 ZRRE AT PRI00BERKE - 7]
MARFRIXEMENXR : QR BEREZXT —E
RS @%2&%%MLﬁ NERMRZAS
EEA AT g8 IEH EhR &ﬁ@ RER R(b)m
EREERXITMREASBE ZBRESEHEMT
ijm(mo;Z@a, ui&mﬁaﬁgjﬁ d
REBEFMUEENERIEZEHE -

FEETEANKERAA 2020585HK 25



Corporate Governance Report
EEEARRE

The written requisition and a sum of money reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses for serving
the notice of the resolution and circulating the
statement submitted by the registered shareholders
concerned in accordance with the statutory and
regulatory requirements to all the registered
shareholders must be deposited at the registered
office of the Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda for the attention of
the company secretary of the Company not less than
six weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution; and not less than
one week before the meeting in the case of any other
requisition; and where an annual general meeting is
called for a date six weeks or less after the requisition
requiring notice of a resolution has been deposited,
the requisition though not deposited within the time
required shall be deemed to have been properly
deposited for such purpose.

The written requisition must be signed by the registered
shareholders concerned and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more
of these shareholders. The written requisition will be
verified with the Company’s share registrars and upon
their confirmation that the requisition is proper and
in order, the company secretary of the Company will
ask the Board to include the resolution in the agenda
for the general meeting, and serving the notice of the
resolution and circulating the statement submitted by
the registered shareholders concerned in accordance
with the statutory and regulatory requirements to all
the registered shareholders. On the contrary, if the
written requisition has been verified as not in order, the
shareholders concerned will be advised of this outcome
and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be
included in the agenda for the general meeting.
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Procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as a director

Pursuant to the Company’'s bye-laws, a registered
shareholder duly qualified to attend and vote at the
general meeting wishes to propose a person other than
a director of the Company for election as a director
at the general meeting must validly serve (1) his/her
written notice of intention to propose a candidate
for election as a director at the general meeting; (2)
a written notice signed by the nominated candidate
of the candidate’s willingness to be elected; (3) the
nominated candidate’s information as required to be
disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules;
and (4) the nominated candidate’s written consent to
the publication of his/her personal data, either to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong
at Room 3403, 34th Floor, China Resources Building,
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong; or to the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office
in Hong Kong, Tricor Abacus Limited at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
no earlier than the day after the dispatch of notice of
the general meeting appointed for such election and no
later than seven days prior to the date of such general
meeting.

Procedures for directing shareholders’
enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to
the Board in writing through the company secretary of
the Company whose contact details are as follows:

Room 3403, 34th Floor, China Resources Building
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Facsimile: (852) 2598 9018

Email: investor@cecht.com.hk

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board
at the general meetings of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

A copy of the constitutional documents of the
Company is available on the website of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the website of
the Company. There was no significant change to the
Company’s constitutional documents during the year.
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To facilitate the payment of dividends and/or
distributions by the Company in the future, a special
resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting to seek the approval of the
shareholders of the Company for amending the existing
bye-law of the Company 138 to match the current
provisions of section 54 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda. Details of the proposed amendment are set
out in the announcement dated 30 March 2021.

ATTENDANCE RECORD AT MEETINGS

Details of the director’'s attendance at general
meetings, Board and Board committee meetings held in
2020 are set out in the table below:

BEMARABBIRERE R, HDIK » AQ A
BREERRBAFAE LRE—BRIIARR -
ERARQNAREIESEIRITA AT MR R AR
F13815 - AT A B RIZ1981F R Al JA BS54/
WATIEX - BZR BRI F BN BHA2021F34
30HZRAER -

eZRHFELE
TR SESP202060NEFERERE - EF

ENEFEZBEERZHE

Meetings attended/held
Ll 8 V£ PN
Remuneration
and
nomination
Audit committee
committee FMk General
Board** EY 2% meetings
EEgn zEg ZEg VN
Non-executive directors FHTES
Dong Haoran EEN 6/6* 12
Liu Jinmei 251 4/5 22
Executive directors HTES
Yu Jian B 5/5 22 22
Liu Hongzhou 2IEM 5/5 212
Independent non-executive directors BUKHTES
Chan Kay Cheung RS 6/6 22 22 22
Qiu Hongsheng g 6/6 212 212* 212
Chow Chan Lum B 6/6 22 22 22
4 Chairman o *E

Pt Included a Board meeting where the chairman of the Board
met with independent non-executive directors without other

directors and management present.
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Due to an unexpected crucial business engagement,
the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”), Mr. Dong
Haoran, did not attend the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 29 June 2020 (the "AGM").
The Chairman is aware that his absence constituted a
deviation from the code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code
which stipulates that the chairman of the board should
attend the annual general meeting of the company.
However, chairman of the audit committee Mr. Chan
Kay Cheung, upon the request of the Chairman,
chaired the AGM in his stead. The deputy Chairman,
all members of the audit committee, all members of
the remuneration and nomination committee and
the managing director attended the AGM and were
available to answer questions at the AGM, so effective
communication with shareholders was ensured.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xu Haidong, aged 51, is the Chairman of the
Board. Mr. Xu graduated from Jiangxi University
of Finance and Economics and holds a Master's
degree in Accounting, obtained a Doctorate degree
in Accounting from School of Management at Jinan
University, and is a senior economist. Mr. Xu is the
chief accountant of Huada Semiconductor Co., Ltd
("Huada Semiconductor”), a controlling shareholder
of the Company. Mr. Xu was the deputy manager of
the supervision section 2 of Zhuhai Central Sub-branch
of the People’s Bank of China, the controller of
corporate financial of State-owned Assets Management
Administration of Zhuhai City, the deputy general
manager of China Electronics Financial Co., Ltd, the
deputy director of the finance department of CEC, and
the financial controller of China Greatwall Technology
Group Co., Ltd (a company with its shares listing on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange). Mr. Xu was appointed as a
director of the Company with effect from April 2021.

Ms. Liu Jinmei, aged 51. Ms. Liu graduated from Jilin
University and holds a Bachelor’'s degree in Chinese
Language and obtained a Master’'s degree of Business
Administration from Beijing Institute of Technology.
Ms. Liu is the deputy general manageress of Huada
Semiconductor and a director of Shanghai Belling
Corp., Ltd (“Shanghai Belling”) (a company with
its shares listing on the Shanghai Stock Exchange).
Ms. Liu was the marketing strategy manageress of
BOE Technology Group Co., Ltd and the marketing
manageress of China Huaxu Golden Card Co., Ltd.
Ms. Liu joined CEC Huada Electronic Design Co., Ltd
in 2005 as the marketing manageress and was in
charge of marketing for a number of years. Ms. Liu
was appointed as a director of the Company in January
2018.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yu lJian, aged 45, is the Deputy Chairman of the
Board. Mr. Yu holds a Bachelor’s degree in Economics
and a Master’s degree in Economics from East China
Normal University, and is a Certified Public Accountant
in the PRC. Mr. Yu is the chairman of the supervisory
committee of Shanghai Belling (a company with its
shares listing on the Shanghai Stock Exchange). Mr. Yu
was the assistant financial controller of Shanghai Guojia
Industrial Co., Ltd, the assistant general manager
and the finance manager of Shanghai Datang Mobile
Communications Equipment Co., Ltd and the financial
controller and the deputy general manager of Shanghai
Pudong Software Park Co., Ltd. Mr. Yu was appointed
as a director of the Company in March 2019.

Mr. Liu Hongzhou, aged 58, is the Managing Director
of the Company. Mr. Liu graduated from the School of
International Business of Nanjing University and holds
a Postgraduate degree in Business and Administration,
and is a senior engineer. Mr. Liu, having spent much
of his career in CEC, was a divisional deputy director
of the asset management department of CEC, an
executive director and the deputy general manager of
Winfair Development Limited, a director of the treasury
division of the investment banking department of
CEC, the deputy general manager of China Electronics
Technology Development Corporation, the deputy
general manager of the asset management department
of CEC, the deputy general manager of the Company,
a director of the general office of CEC, a director of
Shenzhen SED Industry Co., Ltd (a company with its
shares listing on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange) and the
managing director of Shenzhen SED Electronics Group
Co., Ltd. Mr. Liu was appointed as a director of the
Company in October 2013.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENREREEAEHE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kay Cheung, aged 74. Mr. Chan is the vice
chairman of The Bank of East Asia (China) Limited.
Mr. Chan was an executive director and the deputy
chief executive of The Bank of East Asia, Limited.
Mr. Chan joined The Bank of East Asia, Limited in 1965
and possesses extensive knowledge and experience in
the banking industry. Mr. Chan is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and a member of
the Committee of Overseers of Lee Woo Sing College,
The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is also
an independent non-executive director of Chu Kong
Shipping Enterprises (Group) Company Limited and
SOCAM Development Limited (all being companies with
their shares listing on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange).
Mr. Chan was appointed as a director of the Company
in May 1997.

Mr. Qiu Hongsheng, aged 56. Mr. Qiu graduated
from the School of Management of Harbin Institute
of Technology and holds a Postgraduate degree
in Management Science and Engineering, and is a
Certified Public Valuer in the PRC, an International
Certified Senior Enterprise Risk Manager, a Certified
M&A Dealmaker in the PRC, a senior economist and
a fund management intermediary. Mr. Qiu is an
executive director and the general manager of China
Consultants of Advisory and Finance Management
Co., Ltd, an independent director of Wuhan Dameng
Database Co., Ltd and a visiting professor of Tianjin
University of Finance and Economics. Mr. Qiu worked
in 710 Research Institute of the Ministry of Aerospace
Industry of China as an economic analyst for a number
of years. Mr. Qiu joined China Consultants of Advisory
and Finance Management Co., Ltd, a company
directly managed by the Ministry of Finance of the
PRC, in 1994 and focuses on management consulting
and corporation restructuring transactions. Mr. Qiu
possesses a wealth of professional knowledge and
practical experiences in corporate finance, mergers
and acquisitions, strategic integration, meticulous
management, etc. Mr. Qiu is also an independent
director of AVIC Heavy Machinery Co., Ltd and GRINM
Advanced Materials Co., Ltd (all being companies with
their shares listing on the Shanghai Stock Exchange)
and an independent non-executive director of CEOVU
(@ company with its shares listing on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange). Mr. Qiu was appointed as a director
of the Company in November 2012.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Chow Chan Lum, aged 70. Mr. Chow graduated
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor of Business Administration degree in 1974,
received a Postgraduate Diploma in Accountancy
from the University of Strathclyde in Glasgow, United
Kingdom in 1975 and was awarded a Postgraduate
Diploma in China Law by the University of Macau in
1987. Mr. Chow has been a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Scotland since 1979 and is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Chow is a member of the Foreign
Experts Consultative Committee on China Independent
Auditing Standards of the Ministry of Finance of the
PRC. Mr. Chow served on a number of committees
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, including as the deputy chairman of the
Auditing & Assurance Standards Committee, and a
member of the Investigation Panel and the Professional
Standards Monitoring Committee and as president
of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. Chow
serves as an honorary advisor and committee member
of various social bodies, and has been a member of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
of Guangdong Province, the PRC from 1997 to 2012.
Mr. Chow was awarded the Medal of Honor by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the PRC in 2013 and the Honorary Fellowship
of the Hong Kong Academy for Performing Arts in
October 2017. Mr. Chow was appointed as a director
of the Company in June 2015.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Wang Qiuju, aged 54, is the financial controller
of the Company. Ms. Wang graduated from the
School of Economics of Xiamen University and holds
a Postgraduate degree in Finance and is a senior
accountant. Ms. Wang was head of the finance
department of Shenzhen SED Electronics Corp., head of
the finance department, financial controller and chief
accountant of Shenzhen SED Electronics Group Co., Ltd
and the general manager of the finance department of
China Electronics Information Service Company Limited.
Ms. Wang joined the Company in March 2015.

Mr. Ng Kui Kwan, aged 59, is the company secretary
of the Company. Mr. Ng holds a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Accounting from the University of Liverpool,
United Kingdom. Mr. Ng is a member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Ng has many years of experience in
auditing, finance and administration. Mr. Ng joined the
Company in November 2008.
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The directors submit their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Group is the design and sale
of integrated circuit chips. The activities of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in Note 33 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DISTRIBUTION

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 62 of
this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
HK2.3 cents per share).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in Note 13 to
the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

At 31 December 2020, the issued share capital of
the Company consisted of 2,029,872,000 shares of
HK$0.01 each. Details of movements in the share
capital of the Company during the year are set out in
Note 23 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group
and the Company during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page
66 of this annual report and Note 32 to the financial
statements, respectively.

The Company does not have any reserve available for
distribution to shareholders at 31 December 2020 (2019:
HK$306,742,000).
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Report of the Directors
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company implements a dividend policy which
aims to provide a stable dividend to shareholders.
The Company will take into account, among others,
the following factors when forming the proposals for
dividend distribution:

(a) the financial performance of the Group; and

(b)  the future funding requirements of the Group.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 148 of this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s business review, discussion and
analysis of its performance for the year and the
outlook of its businesses are set out in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” and
“Chairman’s Statement” on pages 7 to 12 and on
pages 4 to 6 of this annual report, respectively. Such
discussions constitute an integral part of this report.

The performance and results of the Group’s businesses
are subject to various important factors, including
the relationship with its employees, customers and
suppliers. The Board believes that the employees
are one of the Group’s most important assets. The
Company will strive to ensure that the remuneration
level of employees is in line with industry practices
and prevailing market conditions, and remuneration
of employees will be determined based on their
performance. Being people-oriented, the Group
ensures all staff are reasonable remunerated and also
continues to improve and regularly review and update
its policies on remuneration and benefits, training, and
occupational health and safety.
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In addition, the Board places great emphasis on a
long-term and stable relationship with the Group’s
customers and suppliers for the continuous success and
growth of the Group’s businesses. The Group has an
extensive sales network across the PRC and to manage
such network requires a close working relationship with
our customers directly and through distributors, agents
and other business partners. The Group will continue
to strengthen its customer service to provide superior
quality service to the users, and strive to achieve the
fastest response time and highest customer satisfaction
levels in the industry. The Group’s continuous effort
to build trust and strengthen mutually beneficial
cooperation with its customers and suppliers has
facilitated to foster long-term cooperation relationships
with them.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACTORS

As nearly all of the Group’s revenue is attributable to
the market in the PRC, the results and performance of
the Group’s businesses depend on the growth of the
information technology sector in the PRC, particularly
the electronic information technology sector. Although
the information technology sector is demonstrating a
growing trend in the past which is in part supported by
favourable government policies, any negative trend in
the information technology sector or other restrictive
policies may materially and adversely affect the
business, financial condition and results of operation of
the Group.

The PRC integrated circuit market is highly competitive
with relatively short product cycles, and is subject
to policies of the government. The Group’s results
of operation substantially depend on the successful
execution of its business strategy and development
plan to maintain its leading position in the design of
integrated circuit chips industry in the PRC. The Group
may face challenges in implementing its business
strategies, and its ability to achieve its goals may be
adversely affected by various factors, some of which
are beyond its control. If the Group is not able to
execute its business strategy and development plan, its
businesses, financial condition and results of operation
may be materially and adversely affected.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION POLICY

As a leader in the design of integrated circuit chips
industry in the PRC, the Group is committed to
operating its business in an environmentally-friendly
manner. Although most of the Group’s businesses
are not subject to any environmental protection rules
and restrictions, the Board believes that operating
the Group’s businesses in an environmentally-friendly
manner is crucial to fulfilling its corporate social
responsibilities.

In order to maintain a high standard of staff awareness
of the relevant rules and requirements, the Group
offers periodical trainings to its key personnel. As a
result of the Group’s commitment to environmental
protection and through the implementation of
advanced technologies, the Group has achieved safe
and environmentally-friendly operation for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

The Company is preparing a Corporate Social
Responsibility Report with reference to the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
as set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules which will
be published separately on the website of the Company
(www.cecht.com.cn) and on the website of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (www.hkex.com.hk)
within five months after the end of the financial year.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Board believes that compliance with laws and
regulations is the cornerstone of a business and
attaches considerable importance to it. Furthermore,
as the shares of the Company are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Company is
also subject to the rules and requirements under the
Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO"). To the best knowledge of the Board,
the Group has complied with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group
throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.
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DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Non-executive Directors
Dong Haoran (Chairman)
Liu Jinmei

Executive Directors
Yu Jian (Deputy Chairman)
Liu Hongzhou (Managing Director)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Chan Kay Cheung

Qiu Hongsheng
Chow Chan Lum

In accordance with bye-law of the Company 87,
Mr. Chan Kay Cheung and Ms. Liu Jinmei will retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company and, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election.

Mr. Dong Haoran will resign from his position as
director with effect from 1 April 2021. On 30 March
2021, Mr. Xu Haidong has been appointed as director
with effect from 1 April 2021. Pursuant to bye-law of
the Company 86(2), Mr. Xu Haidong will hold office
only until the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, will offer himself for re-election.

The Company has entered into a service contract
with each of the directors of the Company containing
terms relating to, among other things, compliance
with relevant laws and regulations, and observation
of the bye-laws of the Company. The directors of the
Company will be subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election in accordance with the bye-laws of the
Company and the Listing Rules.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
employing company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received from each of the
independent non-executive directors an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules, and considers them to be
independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2020, Mr. Dong Haoran, a non-executive
director of the Company and the Chairman of the
Board, was interested in 4,672,420 ordinary shares of
the Company (long position) (representing 0.23% of
the issued share capital of the Company), and Ms. Liu
Jinmei, a non-executive director of the Company, was
interested in 197,250 ordinary shares of the Company
(long position) (representing 0.01% of the issued share
capital of the Company). Save as disclosed herein, none of
the directors nor the chief executive of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO), which were recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors of the Company or their respective
close associates (as defined under the Listing Rules)
to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT AND CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
to which the Company, its holding company or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 30 July 2020, CEC Media Holdings Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase
Agreement”) with China Electronics Information Service
Company Limited (“CEISCL"). Pursuant to the Sale
and Purchase Agreement, CEC Media Holdings Limited
has agreed to sell, and CEISCL has agreed to acquire,
33.67% of the issued share capital of CEOVU for a
consideration of HK$1,785,000,000 (the “Disposal”).

CEISCL is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CEC, which is
the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company.
CEISCL is a connected person of the Company under
the Listing Rules. The Sale and Purchase Agreement and
the transactions contemplated thereunder constitutes a
connected transaction of the Company. Details of the
Disposal are set out in the circular dated 30 September
2020. The Sale and Purchase Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder were approved
by the independent shareholders of the Company at
the special general meeting held on 27 October 2020.
The Disposal was completed in November 2020.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain of the related party transactions as disclosed
in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements
also fall under the definition of “continuing connected

transactions”

within the meaning of the Listing

BIELEMREANER  FREVERRWEIVME
ENETHEBARXSGTBRIHERERS] - %
ERGHUBEBTLEMBRAUNFEISAZFRE 2T °
E?mﬁx%ﬁLﬁtmﬁﬂm$ﬁ&¢§%%

Rules. These transactions have complied with the RE - BEFBEHRAOT
requirements as set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Details of certain of these transactions which
are subject to the reporting and annual review
requirements under the Listing Rules are summarised as
follows:
Transaction
amount
in 2020
#20204F
RELHE
Notes HK$'000
Type of transaction XZ 85 HiaF TR
Sale of products to the CEC Group APEETFEBERE R ARHEER i, ii(a) 85,915
Purchase from the CEC Group and AP EEFEBERES QA RE i, ii(b) 115,808
provision of services by the CEC Group KHBEEFEEKERT
P ER A B AR 7%
Property management fee paid to the CEC MAREFEEKE AR i, iii 5,034
Group MEERE
Rental received from the CEC Group APEEFEERE QA WIRES i iv 2,432
Additions of right-of-use assets IR FEREEE i v 30,137
Fees and commissions for financial services AR EFEBERKE R A i 9

paid to the CEC Group

BEREzFEENAE

Notes:

)

(if)

42

CEC (CEC and its subsidiaries, the “CEC Group”), is a
connected person of the Company by virtue of being the
controlling shareholder of the Company under the Listing Rules.

On 25 April 2018, the Company entered into a business
services agreement (the “2018 Business Services Agreement”)
with CEC to regulate the terms of the proposed continuing
connected transactions and their respective proposed caps
of the transactions thereunder for the period commencing
from 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2021. Pursuant to the 2018
Business Services Agreement, the CEC Group provides products
processing, testing and assembling services to the Group, while
the Group purchases raw materials, modules, software and
equipment from the CEC Group and sells products to the CEC
Group.

The 2018 Business Services Agreement and the related caps
were approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting held on 28 June 2018,
details of which are set out in the circular dated 8 June 2018.

(a) Sale of products including integrated circuit cards and
smart cards modules and chips to the CEC Group.
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(iii)

(iv)

(b) Raw materials, modules, software and equipment
purchased from the CEC Group are for the Group's
research and development of integrated circuit cards,
smart cards and chips. The CEC Group also provides
products processing, testing and assembling services to
the Group.

On 19 December 2017, the Company and CEC Rida Property
Management Co., Ltd (“CEC Rida”), a subsidiary of CEC,
entered into a master property management agreement (the
"2018 Master Property Management Agreement”) pursuant
to which CEC Rida and its subsidiaries shall from time to time
provide property management services to the Group for a term
of three years commencing from 1 January 2018 and ending
on 31 December 2020. The transactions contemplated under
the 2018 Master Property Management Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company. Details
of the 2018 Master Property Management Agreement and
the related caps are set out in the announcement dated 19
December 2017.

On 19 December 2017, the Company and CEC entered into
a master lease agreement (the “2018 First Master Lease
Agreement”) pursuant to which the Group shall from time to
time lease properties located within the PRC and owned by the
Group to the CEC Group for a term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2018 and ending on 31 December 2020. The
transactions contemplated under the 2018 First Master Lease
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company. Details of the 2018 First Master Lease Agreement
and the related caps are set out in the announcement dated 19
December 2017.

On 19 December 2017, the Company and CEC entered into
a master lease agreement (the “2018 Second Master Lease
Agreement”) pursuant to which the Group shall from time
to time rent properties located within the PRC and owned by
the CEC Group from the CEC Group for a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2018 and ending on 31 December
2020. The transactions contemplated under the 2018 Second
Master Lease Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company. Details of the 2018 Second
Master Lease Agreement and the related caps are set out in the
announcement dated 19 December 2017. The Company has
subsequently revised the annual cap amounts of rental payable
by the Group to the CEC Group under the 2018 Second Master
Lease Agreement. Details of the revised caps are set out in
the announcement dated 9 January 2019. In 2019, the Group
adopted Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 16 “Leases”
("HKFRS16") which sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases. Under
HKFRS16, for transactions relating to leases with a term of
12 months or less and leases of low-value asset contemplated
under the 2018 Second Master Lease Agreement, lease
payments will be disclosed as rental paid to the CEC Group
in the above table. Such transactions constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company. For transactions
relating to leases with terms ranging from more than one year
to three years contemplated under the 2018 Second Master
Lease Agreement, the Group recognised HK$30,137,000 as
acquisition of right-of-use assets during 2020.

(iii)

(iv)
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On 25 April 2018, the Company entered into a
financial services agreement (the “2018 Financial
Services Agreement”) with China Electronics Financial
Co., Ltd (“CEC Finance”), a subsidiary of CEC,
to regulate the terms of the proposed continuing
connected transactions and their respective proposed
caps of the transactions thereunder for the period
commencing from 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2021.
Pursuant to the 2018 Financial Services Agreement,
the financial services provided by CEC Finance to the
Group includes deposit services, financial assistance and
fee-based and commission-based financial services.

The 2018 Financial Services Agreement and the related
caps were approved by the independent shareholders
of the Company at the special general meeting held
on 28 June 2018, details of which are set out in the
circular dated 8 June 2018.

Pursuant to the 2018 Financial Services Agreement, the
maximum daily balance of deposits (together with the
interests accrued thereon) maintained by the Group
with CEC Finance shall not exceed RMB820 million and
the Group's actual balance of deposits (together with
the interests accrued thereon) with CEC Finance on any
given day during the year ended 31 December 2020
had not exceeded such amount. For the provision of
financial assistance, the maximum amount of financial
assistance provided by CEC Finance to the Group shall
not exceed RMB820 million on any given day and the
actual balance of financial assistance provided by CEC
Finance on any given day during the year ended 31
December 2020 had not exceeded such amount.

In 2020, CEC has provided guarantees for certain
short-term bank borrowings of the Group, and the
Group did not provide any counter security over the
assets of the Group. The guarantee fees paid by the
Group amounted to HK$11,252,000 for the year ended
31 December 2020. As the financial assistance received
by the Group from CEC is conducted on normal
commercial terms and is not secured by the assets of
the Group, this continuing connected transaction is
fully exempt under Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules.
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Save as disclosed above, all of the related party
transactions as disclosed in Note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements do not constitute connected
transactions under the Listing Rules.

The above continuing connected transactions have
been reviewed by the independent non-executive
directors of the Company. In the opinion of the
independent non-executive directors of the Company,
the above continuing connected transactions were
carried out in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group, on normal commercial terms and were
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

Based on the results of the work performed on the
above continuing connected transactions, the auditor
of the Company has confirmed in its letter to the
Board that nothing has come to their attention that
causes them to believe that these continuing connected
transactions:

o have not been approved by the Board,

° were not, in all material respects, in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Group if the
transactions involve the provision of goods or
services by the Group;

° were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions; and

o have exceeded the cap as disclosed in the
announcements.
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CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

On 30 December 2020, the Company and CEC entered
into a master property management agreement (the
“2021 Master Property Management Agreement”),
pursuant to which the CEC Group shall from time to
time provide property management services to the
Group for a term of three years commencing from 1
January 2021 and ending on 31 December 2023. The
transactions contemplated under the 2021 Master
Property Management Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company. Details of the
2021 Master Property Management Agreement are set
out in the announcement dated 30 December 2020.

On 30 December 2020, the Company and CEC entered
into a master lease agreement (the “2021 First Master
Lease Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group shall
from time to time lease properties located within the
PRC and owned by the Group to the CEC Group for a
term of three years commencing from 1 January 2021
and ending on 31 December 2023. The transactions
contemplated under the 2021 First Master Lease
Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company. Details of the 2021 First
Master Lease Agreement are set out in the
announcement dated 30 December 2020.

On 30 December 2020, the Company and CEC entered
into a master lease agreement (the “2021 Second
Master Lease Agreement”), pursuant to which the
Group shall from time to time rent properties located
within the PRC and owned by the CEC Group from the
CEC Group for a term of three years commencing from
1 January 2021 and ending on 31 December 2023. The
transactions contemplated under the 2021 Second
Master Lease Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company. Details of the
2021 Second Master Lease Agreement are set out in
the announcement dated 30 December 2020.

Save as disclosed above and elsewhere in this annual
report, at no time during the year had the Company or
any of its subsidiaries entered into any contract of
significance with any controlling shareholder or any of
its subsidiaries, nor had any contract of significance
been entered into for the services provided by any
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENT DURING THE
FINANCIAL YEAR

On 27 November 2020, the Group completed the
disposal of 33.67% of the issued share capital of
CEOVU for a consideration of HK$1,785,000,000.
Further information is set out in the section headed
“Connected Transaction” in this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, the
following directors of the Company are considered
to have interests in businesses which compete or are
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group:

Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

MBFEANERSEE

MN2020F 118278 » KR&EE KA Y E
1,785,000, OOO/%ﬁHj%EPEE%’ 233.67%0 %
ﬂﬁxzﬁ TERHRAREZELSIBFER
51 —fe

EENBEEB 2 ER

RAFERALREEAREBE  THARFESE
WRERAEAEEEKEEXBEBXFEF X
AIREE R F C ETF R

Nature of
director’s interest
Principal business in the entity
Name of director Name of entity of the entity EENERER
EEnE Ll LRSS ZRAHIEE
Dong Haoran Huada Semiconductor (Note 1) Design and manufacture Chairman
BENR ERFER (ML) of integrated circuits EER
SR ERRRAT B E
Shanghai Belling (Note 1) Design and manufacture Chairman
BB BEBE) of integrated circuits BEK
ERERRE REBE
Yu Jian Shanghai Belling (Note 1) Design and manufacture Chairman of the
B EEREHF) of integrated circuits  supervisory committee
SRERRE REE EER
Liu Jinmei Shanghai Belling (Note 1) Design and manufacture Director
251 BB BERF) of integrated circuits Ef
LR ERRRAT R BE
Notes: B
(1) CEC is the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company. (1) HEEFEERARARAZERERRR HEHEFEH

CEC is a state-owned nationwide electronics and information
technology conglomerate. These companies are subsidiaries
or associates of CEC and engaging in, or have subsidiaries or
associates engaging in, integrated circuits related businesses
which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

The above mentioned competing businesses are
operated and managed by independent management
and administration. The Board exercises independent
judgment and is always acting for the interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole. Accordingly,
the Group is capable of carrying on its businesses
independently of, and at arm’s length from, the
competing businesses mentioned above.
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CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ PARTICULAR

Changes in particulars of the directors of the Company
since the date of the 2020 Interim Report required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules are set out below:

Mr. Dong Haoran ceased to be the chairman of
Huada Semiconductor in October 2020, the chairman
of GTA Semiconductor Co., Ltd in March 2021, and
an executive director of Advanced Semiconductor
Manufacturing Corporation Limited in March 2021.

Mr. Chan Kay Cheung ceased to be the independent
non-executive director of Hong Kong Food Investment
Holdings Limited (a company with its shares listing on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange) in August 2020.

Mr. Yu Jian ceased to be the chief accountant of
Huada Semiconductor in October 2020, a member of
the supervisory committee of GTA Semiconductor Co.,
Ltd in March 2021, and a member of the supervisory
committee of Advanced Semiconductor Manufacturing
Corporation Limited in March 2021.

Mr. Qiu Hongsheng was appointed as an independent
director of Wuhan Dameng Database Co., Ltd in
November 2020.

EEERNZEE
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SHAREHOLDERS WITH NOTIFIABLE
INTERESTS

At 31 December 2020, the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO showed
that the following persons (other than the directors
or chief executive of the Company) had notified the
Company that they had an interest of 5% or more in
the issued share capital of the Company:

Report of the Directors
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2020124318 » RIBFESHF R EEHI%E33
BARBABETFZERMAT  THAL( AR
RIEEAZREITERABRIIN ERNEARRAF
BAAARBEEITRAS% A L2

aras
~T

Number of
shares held or

attributable Percentage

EESEN of shareholding

Name of interested party BEREGEER Iz 8 8 BERBEDL

China Electronics Corporation  China Electronics Corporation 812,500,000 40.03%
(BVI) Holdings Company (BVI) Holdings Company

Limited (“CEC (BVI)") Limited ([ CEC (BVI)])
Huada Semiconductor (Note 1) ZEKXY¥E88 (f/:771) 1,206,180,000 59.42%
CEC (Note 2) FEEFEER (HiE2) 1,206,180,000 59.42%

Notes:

(1) Huada Semiconductor holds 100% equity interest in CEC (BVI).
Pursuant to the SFO, Huada Semiconductor is deemed to be
interested in the 812,500,000 shares of the Company held by
CEC (BVI).

(2) CEC holds 100% equity interest in Huada Semiconductor.
Pursuant to the SFO, CEC is deemed to be interested in the
shares of the Company held by Huada Semiconductor. The
Board regards CEC, a state-owned enterprise established under
the laws of the PRC, as being the ultimate holding company of
the Company.

All the interests disclosed above represent long position
in the shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2020, the
Company had not been notified of any other interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which were required to be recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO.
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SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OBLIGATION
ON CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

In October 2020, the Company entered into a facility
agreement (the “Facility Agreement”) with a bank
(the “Lender”) for an uncommitted revolving loan in
an aggregate amount of up to RMB300,000,000 (the
“Facility”). The maturity date of the Facility is one year
from the date of acceptance of the Facility Agreement.
Pursuant to the terms of the Facility Agreement, it will
constitute an event of default if CEC ceases to directly
or indirectly own not less than 51% of the beneficial
shareholding interest of the Company. If an event of
default under the Facility Agreement has occurred,
the Lender may declare that all of the Company’s
obligations to the Lender shall become immediately
due and payable. Details of the Facility and the Facility
Agreement are set out in the announcement dated 22
October 2020.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws or the laws in Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares and the
Company had not redeemed any of its shares during
the year ended 31 December 2020.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the aggregate
sales attributable to the five largest customers of
the Group accounted for 77% of the Group’s sales
for the year and sales attributable to the Group's
largest customer accounted for 28% of the Group's
sales for the year. For the year ended 31 December
2020, the aggregate purchases attributable to the
five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for 80%
of the Group's purchases for the year and purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier accounted
for 33% of the Group’s purchases for the year.

To the best knowledge of the Board, CEC Group is not
a beneficial owner of the five largest customers and is
the beneficial owner of one of the five largest suppliers
of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, their
respective close associates or any shareholder (which
to the best knowledge of the Board owns more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interest in any of the Group's five largest customers or
suppliers.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2020 or
subsisted at 31 December 2020.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
SCHEME

Details of the retirement and employee benefits scheme
of the Group are set out in Notes 8 and 34 to the
financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to
the date of this report, the Company has undertaken
and maintained a collective liability insurance policy
covering, among others, all directors of the Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract, other than employment contracts,
concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the Group’s businesses
were entered into or existed during the year ended 31
December 2020.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available
to the Company and to the best knowledge of the
Board, at the date of this report, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital are held by the
public and fulfills the requirement under the Listing
Rules.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made donations amounting
to HK$338,000 (2019: nil).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Board has reviewed the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

B i SR 9 175 R

RE E2020F12 8318 IEF E 5020205128
318 » AR A I LTS sk 17 T ] =A% ZH 8 15

R K B & 18 R 5t &

AEERKEEBEBAE 2FBH R B®RE
MizE8 K34 »

BAEFTREMRX
REZ2020F12A83MBILtFEMEZAFHER

B ARFRER(BRETER) ARFBZMAE
ERERET-HEBAERR

EEEYN
REZ2020F12A31HIEFE BB KFE

EAERAEE 2 HEMBARLO EH 2 EE
RITBAK (BEAKRIN) °

DBERE
RABREBE  RETRUARRZAMER K

HREFEMAA  RARAFREBEITRAERELA
5% RABATHAANE EHRAZER -

B

FA - AEEE LRI IB K S338,00078 7T (2019
FE) -

BEREES

EXeE THNERZBESCEHNASEEE2020
FR2ANALEFENEEREMH®RE

HEEFEARNKARAT 2020FFHK 51



Report of the Directors

EEERE

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2020 have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers. PricewaterhouseCoopers shall
retire as auditor of the Company upon the expiration
of its current term of office with effect from the
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting.
A resolution for the re-appointment or appointment
of auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. If it is intended
at the forthcoming annual general meeting to
appoint an auditor other than the retiring auditor, an
announcement in relation to the proposed change of
auditor pursuant to Rule 13.51(4) of the Listing Rules
will be made as soon as practicable.

On 28 June 2018, the term of office of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company
expired. On the same day, the shareholders resolved
to appoint Ernst & Young as auditor of the Company.
Details of the change of auditor are set out in the
announcement dated 26 March 2018.

On 29 June 2020, the term of office of Ernst &
Young as auditor of the Company expired. On the
same day, the shareholders resolved to appoint
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company.
Details of the change of auditor are set out in the
announcement dated 30 March 2020.

On behalf of the Board

Dong Haoran
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of China Electronics Huada
Technology Company Limited

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in
Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of China
Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 62 to 147, which comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2020;

e  the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year then ended,;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Independent Auditor’'s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2020,
and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

BEMHER

BRMRE  ZERAUERRCBES ST
AREEMACEBYBEREEANEEMFR SR
T HEBEMN2020F12831BHNEAMERR
MEHEZABLFENGAVMBRRARGEER S
HE WO HEBREB(ATGINNBBEREL A
Fi o

ERHNER

BRPERBEFESHMAGROIN(EEENE
AN ETE - BRAAEZFEAT 7¥<13*E’JTTEE
Eﬁiﬁiﬁ?%lﬁﬂiﬁ%%ﬁr */m\ﬁﬂ“ﬂﬁ&?ﬁﬁkﬁ*ﬁ’]f
ElESo P EE— PR

BFIEGE BPIAESHETREETEEE
WREMANESERIEHER -

Byt

REFEGAMASRHNC(EXRSEIBRET
ADATEREITA])  BMABLY E&E -
YEBTTRFNEMERBRAEE

FARETER

AREAFTEERERMANERAE  FAER
HGAMBERRNEARAEENTH - EEF
HRERMBABCGEAMBRRLEAERR
ETREN BT EHELSTREREBNE
B o

54  cChina Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited Annual Report 2020



Key audit matters identified in our audit are

summarized as follows:

° Provision for expected credit losses (“ECL") on

trade receivables
° Provision for inventories

Ke Atidit Matter
fpEiEE

Provision for ECL on trade receivables

ESRUNBERRIEEERERE

Refer to Note 2 and Note 18 to the consolidated
fmanoal statements.

A2RGRA B RRM T2 MM 18

The gross balance of trade receivables as at 31
December 2020 amounted to HK$437,876,000
(excluding notes receivable amounted to
HK$156,665,000), against which allowance for
expected credit losses amounting to HK$86,625,000
was recognised.
2020F12A831H0 - B 5 & & ﬁ%@%é?%
437,876,000/ T (41 & & Uk = H@156 665,000/8
%) - Bt R %ﬁiﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬂaﬁéﬁ% 625,000/ 7T

Management applied the simplified approach and
adopted a provision matrix to measure the lifetime
expected credit loss allowance for all its trade
receivables. Management reviewed the credit risk
of individual debtors by considering the nature
of transactions, relationship with customers and
their financial position, etc. to assess whether any
increase in credit risk which may trigger further
specific provision at the end of the reporting period.
In calibrating the provision matrix, trade receivables
have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and aging periods and management
used judgement in making the assumptions about
the expected credit loss rate with reference to the
historical observed default rates and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors.
EEEBRAMHE  WIRABEEGEERFEERBEE
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
RPN ET NN EEEREETSE

We have performed the following procedures to
address this key audit matter:

KB LA AR B FEATATIEF

o Understood and evaluated the management’s
internal control and assessment process of
impairment of trade receivables and assessed
the inherent risk of material misstatement
by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk
such as complexity, subjectivity, changes and
susceptibility to management bias or fraud.
TﬁcpI.ﬂEE@ﬁfé%@H& K IE R (B B B

2l R EF AR - WiEBE BT EE R
ENEMERRRMIZE - BN - FHIE -
SHANERERRIBMFEOATRME  FEE
N EE AR BR Tt 09 R 72 @ B o

e Validated the effectiveness of key controls
over the provision for ECL on trade receivables
process, on a sample basis.
MERIBHEHRWFIERBEEEERED
FEEFIRENB M -

o Discussed with management and assessed
the reasonableness of the provision policy of
trade receivables and assessed any indicators
for change in credit risk characteristics from

historical patterns.
HERENmITEESRUGRAERBRRD

AR FEEEEAREMEREEANED
i o

o Checked, on a sample basis, the aging
profile and historical loss allowance on trade
receivables.
MEE ZRERFIENRRIENSBEBEREES -
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Kengudlt Matter

We focused on auditing impairment of trade
receivables because the estimation of the ECL
on trade receivables is subject to high degree
of estimation uncertainty. The inherent risk in
relation to assessment of ECL on trade receivables
is considered relatively higher due to subjectivity of
significant management judgements and estimates
are involved.
ﬁff‘ﬁ%%%?f’f%ﬁﬂ& KIERLE - YR Y B 5 el
FIENEREEEENMGAFERANTEEN - &
R RBERNERBHEG RETOTEYE  RARRES
P L T ) T 1 9B A 0 B L $H£ﬁ?m°

Provision for inventories

FERE

Refer to Note 2 and Note 19 to the consolidated
flnanoal statements.

ARG ERAM E2RMFE19 -

The gross balance of inventories as at 31 December
2020 amounted to HK$624,153,000, against which
a provision of HK$124,043,000 was recognised.
M2020%12 4318 - 17 & # & # /624,153,000
7T ERLULERR B £5124,043,0008 TT

Finished goods and work in progress are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined using the weighted-average method.
Management reviews the inventory costing on a
regular basis to ensure accuracy.
B MERMBER AR A B FEREPBREEZ
5l| o ﬁZK%ﬁHbD%ﬂ?i’]PHﬂE - EREETHENGTFE
BCAGTE - LARER L EREME o

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
BMNESTNNEEBRETSHE

J Challenged management for the assumptions
and data used in assessing the ECL rate,
corroborated explanations with underlying
documentation and correspondence with the
customers.
RALEHEEEEREFANBREREER
EEERLER MAERAXMHRETFORE
kB ERE -

o Interviewed management to corroborate
their explanations on the doubtful receivable
balances on a sample basis to evaluate whether
any increase in credit risk which may trigger
further specific provision.

B EK - TEE‘%THQJEH&Z%BE ﬁ%ﬁ’]
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o Compared, on a sample basis, the subsequent
collection with the original estimation to
evaluate the reliability and accuracy of
management judgement and estimates in the
ECL assessment.
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fEET B AT SE1E M BRI -

We have performed the following procedures to
address this key audit matter:

BAREEZERESFTENT T UATESF

o Understood and evaluated the management'’s
internal control and assessment process
of provision for inventories and assessed
the inherent risk of material misstatement
by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk
such as complexity, subjectivity, changes and
susceptibility to management bias or fraud.
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Key Audit Matter
BARETEE

In respect of the provision for inventories,
management determines the provision with
reference to the aging analysis, the estimated net
realisable value for obsolete and/or slow-moving
inventory items identified that are no longer saleable
in the market at the end of each reporting period.
AREERE  BEEZ2REREIN SWMEHRRE
ESBIN BRI ETS FEENBRR S HEFE
EEMEE A SRR ERETREE -

We focused on auditing the assessment of provision
for inventories because the estimation of the net
realisable value of inventories is subject to high
degree of estimation uncertainty. The inherent
risk in relation to the assessment of provision for
inventories is considered relatively higher due to
subjectivity of significant management judgements
and estimates are involved.

BMEHEFFERE  DARYEFEAIZRFEN
HETFERRKNTEEN - B REBXE R A B R
HErEHEN  RARAFEREFANERRRE

EI L

Independent Auditor’'s Report
18 3 % B A =R

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
BMNESNNEEBRRETSE

o Discussed with management and assessed
the reasonableness of the provision policy of
inventories.
HEREMNRLTRTFERBBERNEGIEN -

. Tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of
inventory aging schedule against the supporting
documents (such as goods receipts notes) as
maintained by the warehouse.
HREBRENEMWRIEREZFIZHAXXMY - HmE A
AT ERE R EREM -

o Compared, on a sample basis, the estimated
selling price as used in the determination of
net realisable value of inventories to the actual
selling price subsequent to year end.
RETFEAZHFERERNAAESEERSF
RIENEREBETHELR -

o Observed the physical condition of inventories,
on a sample basis, during stocktake to identify
slow moving, damaged, or obsolete inventories,
and inquired management if appropriate
inventory provision had been provided for those
inventories.

BRER - UHMESTABRFENER LR - UE
R BIESGBRNEE  YHAREEERS
RZEFEFIREENFER®E -

Based on the above, we considered that
management’s judgements and assumptions applied
in the assessment of provision for inventories
were supportable by the evidence obtained and
procedures performed.
ER EaER  BAIRE ERERNTREFERER
%i?%%&ﬁ&ﬂﬁ%@%%%ﬁ&ﬁﬁ%@%%
L T °
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB ET RS

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all
of the information included in the annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

iy

HibfE 2

BERAEZRAHHEMEERE - HUMEREREF
BAMMARER  BIeREaPHEERRERM
B B R -

BB GAMBERRNBERLTRERLMBESR
BT T HZEEMESRREAEANERS

N
A ©

‘BERMERAMBEHRRNES  RANEER
FEEMES  EhART ZEEMEERLS
HGAMBERERABRPEETBETR TR
NFEEABRBEREUTFFEERBERRANE
S o

ERBAEATHILE  WRBABREMLER
FEBAHERRL  ZMFEREZFE -EE
AEc BPPEBEA®RE -

ERBREEENGFEUBRREAK
BT

iy ol

BERREFRRERBEEESQHMAGHEMN(E
BMBREERD) RBE(RFHEID W RERE
REEEMTENSERGHRE  YHERRA
A M BRRNBE N FEBRRAFFRERM
BYHBAERRAFMFTOHAMLIEFEE

ERBREMBERRE EFAENE E5E
SERLEMEES)  XEBRBR T HEERFER
SHBANER URERAFELLERETER
RHEEAER BEEEBFRIEFLLE L5
BEEMERNERTR -

58 China Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited Annual Report 2020



The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

Independent Auditor’'s Report
18 3 % B A =R

BEZZEQBREEE BERENMBHESBE -

BREBMREFTREMBRRARNEL

BPWER REGAUBEHRRERESAFHE
HRERFFRERMERMNE ARG A
RE THABRREMEROZEBERE - HA
gR HETEAEB) MERMNER > Ktz
SIARBEREEME N - ROATERARENA
RAEREMALE FHAREREE - GBR
HEERKFONRE  BTERERBCEERF
FADETHERS AR - ERERBAFTER
ML IR o SEERIRAL AT A R ERFF B AR 51 - 1
REEBHEMEBERLERAIELEREM

BHRRE A E KBS S MBS HRERPIE A EER
E - R B RERBA SRR A IRAREE K ©

ERB(EBEENETEIBES - ]
ERTEEHALE R TEREREE - BN

o FRIMIFEBNIRFFAERMER SR A W

BRFEERHERBRADEAR - R RIT
BREFARYELRAR - AREREEM

BEENETRE  EREMEENER - i
RIS L ER  RE E5ER &
RERA - SOEBERAERZES 2 £ - Bt RKEE
LH AR M BN B A RR A R =
PRI BE 3% 3R [ 35 BR T B B Y B A 5 AR BR L 19
H|§uuo

o  THRERSHEBNARES  URFTEEDN
B2 EEMILIEY E\mlﬂﬂ*lﬁ il
MARMEERER -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR S

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

60

o HEEEMRASHBRNREERELS
AHEFHAIEEREN SR -

s HEFERARKELLIFTERNKEEED
o RIBMERNBIEE BHEREF
HEEEBEFFERNBEBOERTHEENL - #Kih
AREENY BERENKEKERNELE
REE - MREMRREFEEATHEEN
QB EAEZEMBRETRBERAELELR
EUBHRTOEBNE BEBENNE
TR ARMEERRFEREER - M
M AR BN E B LA EUS R ERT
B o A RRFRFBENAELER &
SETREERE -

o FERAMBEBRNWELIFRTN - EBM
N BREE UEREaUBHRERESH
BERBRZHMER -

e I ERERNERAXRBEHNUKESE
RAER BENETERE  WEHEREHB
BREXBR - RMEE BEKEFNT
[« BEBMATT - RP/BA B R AEZE
BfE-

FREMERIN RMAEBEZEZBQERTAEN
FERTHE WRZH BEARAERST  BRER
{PIFE 2R 5T 7P &8 Bl v P BB 22 1) &0 1 fR] BB KRB
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a
statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Pang Ho Yin.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021

Independent Auditor’'s Report
18 3 % B A =R

BPEMNEZZESRIBH  SHARMEHE
BERBIENHBERBRER Y EMOFEE
BB AR ERMBLMENMEH
FEMEMER  UREERANBERT - BB
WEYMELBENTRRRIMN T EEE

HBEZZERBNEERD  RMAEEWLES
BHAHGAVBRRNETZAEE - AME
PREISE BT FIH - HPIERBEN T E Pl iE L
FH BIRERERTAHRRBEEELEA -
HEMHFERNBERT - MREGIEBRERMIR
THABRFRENNEEEARBEEENAR
Mag HPIRETEERSESHEBRZEE -

HARBIZBEABRENEABEERAREE

o

BORKEBEFMSEHAM
HEGEHED

EF78 - 20213830
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

— = 32
meBmRk
Year ended 31 December
HE12A31BLELFE
2020 2019
2020%F 20194
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 FHBT F& T
Revenue A 5 1,324,556 1,695,486
Cost of sales 55 AR 7 (874,111) (1,158,987)
Gross profit ER 450,445 536,499
Other income H g A 6 36,153 34,910
Selling and marketing costs HE LT IG#HEK AR 7 (73,895) (83,154)
Administrative expenses THRAX 7 (319,822) (345,756)
Impairment losses on trade and other & 5 & H b f& Ik 5k 18
receivables (B B 1B 19 (11,690) (7,402)
Operating profit KRR 81,191 135,097
Finance income BE WA 9 6,437 2,074
Finance costs B & B AR 9 (100,377) (103,381)
Finance costs — net BB A - FRE 9 (93,940) (101,307)
Share of results of associates iR/ 17 91,293 121,000
Loss on disposal of an associate HE—fAeE N aEia 17 (1,080,850) =
(Loss)/profit before taxation BREBLAT (B518) R A (1,002,306) 154,790
Taxation HIE 10 (8,818) 2,796
(Loss)/profit for the year TEE (BR)EH (1,011,124) 157,586
(Loss)/profit for the year REE (BB wR
attributable to: HER:
Owners of the Company KAFIEZEEE (1,013,263) 155,159
Non-controlling interests FEIZE AR = 2,139 2,427
(1,011,124) 157,586
Dividend ’E 11 - 46,687
HK cents HK cents
7B il
Basic (loss)/earnings per share BRER(FE) BA 12 (49.92) 7.64
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEEWER

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A318LEE

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(Loss)/profit for the year REE(ER) &R (1,011,124) 157,586
Other comprehensive income for AEEHBRHEERDN
the year, net of taxation: Ht2mEUE :
ltems that may be subsequently reclassified B geENBE R T
to profit or loss: HEERIER -
Exchange differences on translation of BREVBHRED
financial statements PE W =% 146,178 (44,670)
Release of accumulated translation reserves oy 2ETIE S EE (1,196) =
ltems that will not be subsequently reclassified Hi1& TREE 5 8 = )i 7
to profit or loss: HEERIER -
Exchange differences on translation of BRERQ BT BRERD
financial statements of the Company JER ERE (31,567) =
Total comprehensive income for the year AEE2HKEHE (897,709) 112,916
Total comprehensive income for the year HAEEZ2HEKFHELE
attributable to: EERN:
Owners of the Company RKRRERFEEE (901,463) 111,649
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR A 2 3,754 1,267
(897,709) 112,916
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

E B ISR &

31 December

31 December

2020 2019
2020128310 2019%F12A31H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Hat TR FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets E(RBEE
Property, plant and equipment ERN ST 13 43,784 63,153
Right-of-use assets THEEE 14 63,059 52,908
Investment properties BREME 15 51,494 48,291
Intangible assets B EE 16 35,849 1,961
Investment in associates REE N RIRE 17 15,936 2,707,889
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H o e WL FIE 18 1,627 =
Deferred tax assets RERTBEE 10 50,615 42,120
262,364 2,916,322
Current assets REBEE
Inventories rE 19 500,110 460,613
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E e W A 18 542,355 713,585
Financial assets at fair value through BRARBEFABZEREE
profit or loss 20 15,403 14,142
Short-term deposits HEER 21 715,368 450,994
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREeEEY 22 465,411 350,219
Restricted cash XRHIRE 22 61,228 =
2,299,875 1,989,553
Total assets BEEHAE 2,562,239 4,905,875
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

= A A
e BERRR
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
2020128318 2019%12A31H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
H et FHET FET
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Equity attributable to owners RAAEZEEEEMN
of the Company e
Share capital and premium B& AN K g (B 23 825,454 825,454
Reserves i (651,237) (750,876)
Retained earnings R 914,342 1,962,131
1,088,559 2,036,709
Non-controlling interests IR RS 23,811 20,057
Total equity A 1,112,370 2,056,766
Liabilities afs
Non-current liabilities F¥RBEE
Lease liabilities HEAaRE 24 37,935 32,180
Trade and other payables B 5 K& E th e 3B 25 15,936 —
Deferred tax liabilities EREFIEEE 10 12,474 12,923
66,345 45,103
Current liabilities REAE
Deferred government grants EEB T 26 58,454 43,667
Contract liabilities EHERE 11,760 6,363
Trade and other payables B 5 K& E th 1 3B 25 559,125 537,474
Bank and other borrowings BIREMEE 27 712,300 2,187,988
Lease liabilities HEBE 24 29,132 21,670
Income tax payable & P15 3 5k 18 12,753 6,844
1,383,524 2,804,006
Total liabilities EEAE 1,449,869 2,849,109
Total equity and liabilities EEREELAE 2,562,239 4,905,875

The financial statements on pages 62 to 147 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors (the “Board”) on 30 March 2021 and are

signed on its behalf by:

Dong Haoran E#% R

Director %

BN FEREEFATEZT B REREEEE ([E
£ ) A2021F3830B#ERIFETIE > W H
THALTREESE

Liu Hongzhou 4T M
Director %
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REERBER

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAREREARG
Property Non-

Share Share Surplus  Translation  revaluation Merger Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve eamings Total interests equity
B BaiE BBk EXRE NRERGR Elic(] iEE  REE B FERER EREE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
Th ThL ThL ThL ThL ThL ThL ThL Thn ThL ThL

(Note 23) (Note 23) (Note (3))

Wan) ) (WEe)
At 1 January 2019 H201951818 20,29 805,155 37,705 (26,225 28,9% (743.127) {415 1,847,569 1,965,657 18,790 1984447
Total comprefensive income 2ikELE - - - (43510) - - - 195,159 111,649 126 112916
Payment of diidend ke - - - - - - - (40,597) (40,597) - (40,597)
At 31 December 2019 20195123318 20,29 805,155 37,705 69,735) 28,9% (743.127) {415 1,962,131 2,036,709 20,057 2,056,766
At 1 January 2020 H20051818 20,299 805,155 37,705 (69,735) 28,99 (143,121) (@ms) 1,962,131 2,036,709 20,057 2,056,766
Total comprefiensive income 2AkELE - - - 111,800 - - - (1013263 (901,463) 3754 (897,709)
Disposal of an associate HE-HBERT - - - - (12,161) - - 12,161 - - -
Payment of dividend ks - - - - - - - (46,687) (46,687) - (46,687)
At 31 December 2020 H20005123318 20,299 805,155 37,705 42,065 16,835 (143,121) (#115) 91438 1,088,559 LR 1112310
(a) Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC, a (a) WEABEPBREM KN - ARTRPRZHEAFTH

portion of the profits of the Company’'s PRC subsidiaries has
been transferred to the enterprise expansion fund and reserve

fund (the “surplus reserve”) which are restricted as to use.

MOGENCHBRERAEIRNCEERESRFHERES
(TEHBEEDA -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31BLFE

2020 2019
20204 20194
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M it FERT FHET
Cash flows from operating RETBH2HERE
activities
Cash flows generated from ReEtzHans
operations 28 282,868 221,793
Interest paid S E (99,389) (101,326)
Income tax paid SN (9,051) (14,617)
Net cash flows generated from KEEBESE
operating activities ZHREREFE 174,428 105,850
Cash flows from investing REZBHZRERE
activities
Interest received U BRI B 15,749 10,151
Purchase of property, plant and BEME  BEKKE -
equipment, and intangible assets MEREE (26,098) (18,407)
Proceeds from disposal of property, BEEWZ%  BEK
plant and equipment BB FTISRIE 13,145 276,031
Proceeds from disposal of land use & & T i {F A HEFTIS KB
rights - 11,253

Payment for financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Proceeds from disposal of financial
assets at fair value through

XMNBRAREFARS

T RIEE KA = (62,500)
HERAAEBFARR

TREEMSRA

profit or loss - 92,632
Increase in short-term deposits BHIFE R 2 1 (264,374) (359,691)
Dividends received I B % B 63,757 63,760
Proceeds from disposal of e — B QR PTFIE

an associate 1,779,737 -
Net cash flows generated from RERBELEZHS

investing activities TmEFRE 1,581,916 13,229
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

R }Eﬁl)lbgﬁ

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31BLFE

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAETT
Cash flows from financing METHZRERE
activities
Proceeds from bank and RITREMEESHRIE
other borrowings 1,844,746 2,380,682
Repayment of bank and BERITRAMBEE
other borrowings (3,375,565) (2,438,795)
Dividend paid SATRR B (46,687) (40,597)
Principal portion of lease payments HEMNRAE I D (23,127) (20,364)
Increase in restricted cash SR ®IIR & 2 12 (59,408) =
Net cash flows used in financing activities BEESAZ
WEREFHE (1,660,041) (119,074)
Net increase in cash RERRESEEYIEM
and cash equivalents }¥§E 96,303 5
Effect of exchange rate changes [EREH T & 18,889 (25,311)
Cash and cash equivalents at E%ﬂzfﬁi&fﬁAM{E%
beginning of the year 350,219 375,525
Cash and cash equivalents at FRZBERBEEEY
end of the year 465,411 350,219
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 E ZE2020F 124318 It FE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

China Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited
(the "Company”) is incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and continued in Bermuda with limited liability. The
Company has its shares listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The address of the Company’s
registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The ultimate holding company of the Company is
China Electronics Corporation Limited (“CEC"), which
is established in the People’'s Republic of China (the
"PRC").

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) are the design and sale of
integrated circuit chips.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

1. —RE#

PEHEFEARBEBERAA(TARRA] A—
MRHEEEFMAKY TREREEHEBELE
WERBEEAR - ARAIRNEBEBHERS
FTERAR LM ARABMFEMPEEMAU A
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda °

ARBZBEERRARATHEETFEEEXEH
BRAR([FEEFEED (—HARFPEARK
ME(THRBEDKRIZEE)

ARAREMBAR ([RAEBDNEIEXBKES
RERE S 2R RHE

BRAERAIN REAPBRRIABTTIIR

2. EXRSHEHEBE

RAERNGAMBRRARAN T ZSABRET
MR BRRBEAN EFHR-—EEREARN
FMIEZ2MIFE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M MRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation

(a) Compliance with HKFRSs, HKASs,
Interpretations and Listing Rules

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. These consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention as modified by
the revaluation of investment properties and certain
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs, HKASs and Interpretations
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgment
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

2. EXRSHHRBEGE)

2.1 REEE

(a) e BEBNBEHEEER  BEEER
a2BR_LEmAA

BAMBREDNBEESCHMASEM AT
EEANEBYBEREEN (BT HEREE
Al BESHER([EBSER ] k2EMm
B - ZEREVBRENETEAHMER S
BRARFHFLETHR (T EWRA]) REBAA]
GOIFME 2 BARBERT - SEMBREIEE
PRAFERERE YRR EMERETRAA
B ABHERMEE BALEYER) NEMEMmME
HIEET o

RETABBYBREED - BEGER KRR
BNGAMBHRRAEAE THRRGHEHE -F
BEEEERASENGHHREBRETTATER
FIET - ARG AMBEHERT 508 R EHE RE
MUNER APREEEBOBRILGE &
By FE4R IR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 124318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.1  Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(b) New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations

In the current year, the Group has adopted for the first
time of all the new or amended HKFRSs and HKASs,
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants that are relevant to the
Group's operations and effective for the accounting
period beginning on 1 January 2020. The adoptions of
these new or amended standards and interpretations
had no material effect on the results and financial
position of the Group and/or disclosures set out in the
consolidated financial statements.

The following amendments to standards that are
relevant to the operation of the Group have been
issued but are not effective for the accounting period
beginning on 1 January 2020 and have not been early
adopted:

2. EXRSHEHRBEGE)

21 RwAUEE(E)

(b) Fral ER| - ERAIEET R 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M MRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 124318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.1  Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(b) New standards, amendments to standards and

interpretations (Cont’d)

HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16
(amendments)

HKFRS 3 (amendments)

HKAS 16
(amendments)

HKAS 37
(amendments)

Accounting Guideline 5
(Revised)

HKAS 1 (amendments)

HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28
(amendments)

Interest rate benchmark reform
- phrase 2 (effective from 1
January 2021)

Reference to the conceptual
framework (effective from 1
January 2022)

Proceeds before intended use
(effective from 1 January 2022)

Cost of fulfilling a contract
(effective from 1 January 2022)

Merger accounting for common
control combinations (effective
from 1 January 2022)

Classification of liabilities as current
or non-current (effective from 1
January 2023)

Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and
its associate or joint venture
(effective date not yet determined
but available for adoption)

Management anticipates that the adoption of the
above amendments to standards will have no material
effect on the results and financial position of the

Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2 Consolidation
(a) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity.

The subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year will be included in the consolidated financial
statements from the effective date of acquisition
or up to the effective date of disposal (except for
acquisition of subsidiaries under common control
which are accounted for using the principles of merger
accounting), as appropriate.

Apart from the application of merger accounting
on common control combination, the acquisition
method of accounting is used to account for business
combination by the Group. The consideration
transferred for an acquisition is the fair values of
the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement. Any
contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity. Acquisition-related
transaction costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M MRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont'd)
(a) Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

The excess of the aggregate of consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of
any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the aggregate of consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of
any previous equity interest in the acquiree is less than
the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary in the
consolidated financial statements to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
provision for impairment losses in the Company’s
statement of financial position. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company in the
Company's statement of profit or loss to the extent of
dividend received and receivable.

(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners
of the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of the carrying amount
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity.
Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 E ZE2020F 124318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont’d)
(c) Common control combination

Merger accounting is used to account for the
acquisition of subsidiaries under common control by the
Group.

Under merger accounting, the consolidated financial
statements incorporate the financial statements of
the combining entities or businesses in which the
common control combination occurs as if they had
been combined from the date when the combining
entities or businesses first came under the control of
the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses
are combined using the existing book values from
the controlling parties’ perspective. No amount is
recognised in consideration for goodwill or excess of
acquirers’ interest in the net fair value of acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over cost at the time of common control combination.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss includes
the results of each of the combining entities or
businesses from the earliest date presented or since the
date when the combining entities or businesses first
came under common control, whichever is shorter and
regardless of the effective date of the common control
combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities or businesses
had been combined at the previous statement of
financial position dates or when they first came under
common control, whichever is shorter.

A uniform set of accounting policies is adopted by
those entities. All intra-group transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions between
combining entities or businesses are eliminated on
consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M MRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont’d)
(c) Common control combination (Cont’d)

Transaction costs, including professional fees,
registration fees, costs of furnishing information to
shareholders, costs or losses incurred in combining
operations of the previously separate businesses, etc.,
incurred in relation to the common control combination
is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.

The difference between the share capital of entities
combined and the fair value of consideration paid has
been recorded in the merger reserve in the consolidated
financial statements.

(d) Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investment in associate is
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is
increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s share
of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of
acquisition. The Group’s investment in an associate
includes goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate,
any difference between the cost of the associate
and the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted
for as goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 E ZE2020F 124318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont’d)
(d) Associates (Cont’d)

The Group’'s share of post-acquisition profit or loss
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, and
its share of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment.
When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to “share of result of associates” in the statement of
profit or loss.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M MRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 124318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.3  Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"”) while the functional
currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB"). The
Company has adopted HK$ as its presentation currency
because the management considered it is more
beneficial to the users of the consolidated financial
statements.

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“functional currency”).

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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2.3

(c)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 124318 It FE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)

Group companies

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the results and financial position of all
the group entities (none of which has the currency of
a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

income and expenses for each statement of
profit or loss are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M MRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
charged in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their costs over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment
are as follows:

— Buildings and leasehold  5-20 years

improvements (or over the lease term,
whichever is shorter)
— Plant and machinery 5-10 years
— Motor vehicles 5-10 years
— Furniture and fixtures 5 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 E ZE2020F 124318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.4 Property, plant and equipment
(Cont’d)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
statement of financial position date.

An asset's carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals or retirement are
determined by comparing the proceeds with the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised within
“other income” in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Construction in progress represents the direct
costs of construction incurred in property less any
impairment losses. No provision for depreciation is
made on construction in progress until such time that
the relevant assets are completed and available for
use. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.

2.5 Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields
or for capital appreciation or both, and is not occupied
by the Group. It also includes properties that are being
constructed or developed for future use as investment
properties. Land held under operating leases are
accounted for as investment properties when the rest
of the definition of an investment property is met.
In such cases, the operating leases concerned are
accounted for as if they were finance leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M MRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.5 Investment properties (Cont’d)

Investment property is initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs and, where
applicable, borrowing costs. After initial recognition,
investment properties are carried at fair value,
representing open market value determined at each
reporting date by external valuers. Fair value is based
on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for
any difference in the nature, location or condition of
the specific asset. If this information is not available,
the Group uses alternative valuation methods such
as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. Investment property that is
being redeveloped for continuing use as investment
property or for which the market has become less active
continues to be measured at fair value. Changes in fair
values are recognised within “other income” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among
other things, rental income from current leases and
assumptions about rental income from future leases in
light of current market conditions. The fair value also
reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outflows that could
be expected in respect of the property.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it
is reclassified as property, plant and equipment, and
its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes
its cost for accounting purposes. Property that is
under construction or development for future use
as investment property is classified as investment
property under construction. Where fair value of
investment properties under construction is not reliably
measurable, the property is measured at cost until the
earlier of the date construction is completed or the date
at which fair value becomes reliably measurable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 E ZE2020F 124318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.5 Investment properties (Cont’d)

If an item of owner-occupied property becomes an
investment property because its use has changed,
any difference resulting between the carrying
amount and the fair value of this item at the date of
transfer is recognised as a revaluation. The resulting
increase in the carrying amount is recognised in other
comprehensive income and as increases in property
revaluation reserve within equity. However, if a fair
value gain reverses a previous impairment loss, the
gain is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, and the remaining part of the increase
is recognised in other comprehensive income and as
increases in property revaluation reserve within equity.
Decreases in fair value of the investment property
against the previous carrying amount are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss for any decrease in
excess of the amount included in revaluation surplus for
that investment property.

2.6 Intangible assets

Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring
to use the specific software. These costs are amortised
over their estimated useful lives of one to five years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.7 Impairment of investments in
subsidiaries and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example
goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each statement
of financial position date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

2.8 Financial assets
2.8.1  Classification

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 124318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8 Financial assets (Cont’d)

2.8.1  Classification (Cont’d)

(a) Financial assets at amortised cost (debt
instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost
if both of the following conditions are met:

° The financial asset is held within a business
model with the objective of holding financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows.

o The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

(b) Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (debt instruments)

The Group measures debt investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income if both of the
following conditions are met:

° The financial asset is held within a business
model with the objective of both holding
financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows and selling.

o The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8 Financial assets (Cont’d)

2.8.1  Classification (Cont’d)
(c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through
profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required to
be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified
as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not solely payments
of principal and interest are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt
instruments to be classified at amortised cost or at
fair value through other comprehensive income, as
described above, debt instruments may be designated
at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition
if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an
accounting mismatch.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8 Financial assets (Cont’d)
2.8.2  Recognition and derecognition

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics and the Group’s business model
for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in
the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables
are measured at the transaction price determined in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group’'s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
market place. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and either the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the financial asset or the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the financial asset, but has transferred
control of the financial asset.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8 Financial assets (Cont’d)
2.8.3  Subsequent measurement
(a) Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

(b) Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income, foreign
exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and
computed in the same manner as for financial assets
measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value
changes are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change
recognised in other comprehensive income is recycled
to the statement of profit or loss.

(c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently measured at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8 Financial assets (Cont’d)
2.8.4 Impairment

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate.
The expected cash flows will include cash flows from
the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided
for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12 month
ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making
the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost
or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8 Financial assets (Cont’d)
2.8.4 Impairment (Cont’d)
General approach (Cont’d)

For debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, the Group applies the low
credit risk simplification. At each reporting date, the
Group evaluates whether the debt investments are
considered to have low credit risk using all reasonable
and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation, the
Group reassesses the external credit ratings of the debt
investments.

The Group may consider a financial asset is
credit-impaired when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets at amortised
cost are subject to impairment under the general
approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables which apply the simplified approach as
detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs.

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 E ZE2020F 124318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8 Financial assets (Cont’d)
2.8.4 Impairment (Cont’d)
General approach (Cont’d)

Stage 3 — Financial instruments that are credit-
impaired at the reporting date (but are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

2.9 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as loans and borrowings, or payables, as appropriate.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables,
other payables, and bank and other borrowings.

2.9.1 Recognition and derecognition

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.9 Financial liabilities (Cont’d)
2.9.2  Subsequent measurement
Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, bank and other borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

2.9.3  Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.10 Inventories

Finished goods and work in progress are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined using the weighted-average method.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises design costs, raw materials, direct labour,
manufacturing cost of subcontractors, other direct
costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less applicable variable
selling expenses.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with banks and other financial
institutions and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of 3 months or
less.

2.12 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
share options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

2.13 Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair values
where there is a reasonable assurance that the
government grant will be received and the Group will
comply with all attached conditions. Government grant
relating to an asset is included in non-current liabilities,
which is credited to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected
useful life of the related asset. Government grant
relating to an expense item is deferred and recognised
as income in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss over the period necessary to match with the cost
that it is intended to compensate.

2.14 Current and deferred taxation

The taxation expense comprises current and deferred
taxation. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or equity.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.14 Current and deferred taxation
(Cont’d)

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
statement of financial position date in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred taxation differences
(i) Inside basis differences

Deferred taxation is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, the deferred taxation is not recognised for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or a liability
in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred taxation
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of
financial position date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred
tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.14 Current and deferred taxation
(Cont’d)

(b) Deferred taxation differences (Cont’d)
(i) Outside basis differences

Deferred tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except
for deferred tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally
the Group is unable to control the reversal of the
temporary difference for associates. Only when there is
an agreement in place that gives the Group the ability
to control the reversal of the temporary difference in
the foreseeable future, deferred tax liability in relation
to taxable temporary differences arising from the
associate’s undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements only to
the extent that it is probable the temporary difference
will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable
profit available against which the temporary difference
can be utilised.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred tax
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to
settle the balances on a net basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.15 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow of resources will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow of resources with
respect to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

2.16 Employee benefits
(a) Pension obligations

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for the eligible employees in
Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
scheme, the assets of which are held in separate trustee
— administered funds. The Group’s contributions to MPF
Scheme are expensed as incurred.

The Group’s subsidiaries operating in the PRC have to
make contribution to staff retirement scheme managed
by local government authorities in accordance with the
relevant rules and regulations. Contributions to these
schemes are charged to the statement of profit or
loss as and when incurred. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions.

(b) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonuses is recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation for payment of bonus as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 E ZE2020F 124318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.17 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of resources will be
required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not provided for as a provision
but is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
When a change in the probability of an outflow of
resources occurs so that the outflow is probable, they
will then be recognised as a provision.

2.18 Revenue recognition
(a) Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services. When the consideration
in a contract includes a variable amount, the amount
of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or
services to the customer. The variable consideration is
estimated at contract inception and constrained until it
is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in
the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved. Revenue from
transferring of goods or services is recognised at the
point in time when control of the asset is transferred to
the customer, generally on acceptance of the goods by
customers or where contract provides a product quality
inspection time period, the product quality inspection
time period has lapsed. The Group considers that the
control of asset is transferred to the customer at the
end of the quality inspection time period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M MRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 124318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.18 Revenue recognition (Cont’d)
(b) Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods
or services to a customer for which the Group has
received a consideration (or an amount of consideration
that is due) from the customer. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under
the contract.

(c) Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 E ZE2020F 124318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.19 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

2.20 Leases
(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease. Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Unless the
Group is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of
the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the
recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the estimated
useful life and the lease term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 124318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.20 Leases (Cont'd)
(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease and are measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease
term. The lease payments include fixed payments
less any lease incentives receivable. As the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable,
the Group’ s incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date is used to calculate the present
value of lease payments. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to
reflect the interest on the leases liabilities and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification or a change in the lease term.

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value asset

For lease with a term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and does not contain a purchase
option (“short-term lease”) and lease of asset that are
considered to be of low value (“lease of low-value
asset”), lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 E ZE2020F 124318 It FE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development

costs

that are directly attributable to the design and

testing of identifiable and unique software products
are recognised as intangible assets when the following
criteria are met:

it is technically feasible to complete the software
product so that it will be available for use;

management intends to complete the software
product and use or sell it;

there is an ability to use or sell the software
product;

it can be demonstrated how the software product
will generate probable future economic benefits;

adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development of the software
product are available; and

the expenditure attributable to the software
product during its development can be reliably
measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of
the software product cost includes employee costs for
software development and an appropriate portion of
relevant overheads. Costs associated with maintaining
computer software programmes are recognised as an
expense as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.21 Research and development costs
(Cont’d)

Other development costs that do not meet these
criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense
are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Computer software development costs recognised as
assets are amortised using straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives, which does not exceed
three years.

2.22 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or the Board, where appropriate.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. Management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure that appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The foreign exchange risks of the Group occurred
due to the fact that the Group had some business
activities denominated in foreign currencies. The
Group’s business activities are primarily exposed to
foreign exchange risk in respect of Hong Kong dollars
against RMB. Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities that are denominated in a currency that is
not the entity’s functional currency. In addition, the
conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to
the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 E ZE2020F 124318 It FE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(a) Foreign exchange risk (Cont’d)

To manage its foreign exchange risk arising from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities, the Group uses forward contracts, when
appropriate, to hedge anticipated cash flows in major
foreign currencies.

If Hong Kong dollars had strengthened/weakened
by 5% against RMB with all other variables held
constant, the loss before taxation for the year ended 31
December 2020 would have been HK$3,414,000 lower/
higher (2019: HK$576,000 higher/lower), mainly as a
result of foreign exchange gains or losses on translation
of Hong Kong dollars denominated cash and cash
equivalents, and bank and other borrowings.

As less than 10% of the Group’'s foreign currency
transactions are denominated in other foreign
currencies, the Board is of the view that foreign
exchange risk in relation to transactions denominated
in other foreign currencies is low. Therefore, no
sensitivity analysis for these currencies is presented.

(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from interest-bearing
assets such as deposits held in banks and other
financial institutions. The average interest rate of
deposits held in banks and other financial institutions
at 31 December 2020 was 2.2% (2019: 3.5%) per
annum. Any change in the interest rate from time to
time is not considered to have a significant impact on
the Group’s performance.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(Cont’d)

In addition, the Group’s interest rate risk which affects
its results and operating cash flows also arises from
interest-bearing liabilities such as bank and other
borrowings. The bank and other borrowings were at
fixed rates and exposed the Group to fair value interest
rate risk. The Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy. However, management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The Group’s bank and other borrowings borrowed at
fixed rates were as follows:
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 E ZE2020F 124318 It FE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(c) Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties failure to perform their
obligations at the end of each reporting period in
relation to each class of recognised financial assets
is the carrying amount of those assets net of loss
allowance as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position. In order to minimise the credit risk,
management of the Group has formulated a defined
credit policy and delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts.

At 31 December 2020, the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment of trade receivables measured
at amortised cost. See Note 19 for the measurement
of ECLs and impairment provision of trade receivables.
For financial assets such as trade receivables measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income,
other receivables, short-term deposits, and cash and
cash equivalents, they are classified within stage 1 for
measurement of ECLs as there is no significant increase
in credit risk.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(d) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management, including
maintaining sufficient working capital, the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of committed
borrowing facilities and the ability to close out market
positions, is adopted. Due to the dynamic nature of the
underlying businesses, the Group maintains flexibility
in funding by ensuring that sufficient committed
borrowing facilities are available.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
by maturity groupings based on the remaining period
at the statement of financial position date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
table are based on the contractual undiscounted cash
flows of the financial liabilities.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(d) Liquidity risk (Cont’d)
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2,760,923 34,678 2,795,601

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts,
which includes bank and other borrowings, and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, which
comprises issued equity and reserves.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.2 Capital risk management (Cont’d)

The Group monitors capital risk using a gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less
cash and cash equivalents, short-term deposits and
restricted cash. Total capital is calculated as equity,
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position, plus net debt.

The calculation of the Group's gearing ratios were
based on the following data:

3. U¥REREEGE)

3.2 EXERERE(E)

AEERAEAABHEREREARRAR - I X
TYABER R R ABE N E - EFFRIRE
ERBERRELREEEY  BHRERMZ RS
RertHE ERBRRGEAUVBIRRKRMAIITZ
BmINERFEE -

AR Y A AR LK TR T 5 BT

2020 2019

20205 20194

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FHE T

Bank and other borrowings (Note 27) SRITREMEE (Hit27) 712,300 2,187,988

Lease liabilities (Note 24) HEBE HiE24) 67,067 53,850
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B -BRekBEEFED

(Note 22) (B it22) (465,411) (350,219)

Restricted cash (Note 22) SIREIIRE (Af:t22) (61,228) =

Short-term deposits (Note 21) METFER (W E21) (715,368) (450,994)

Net (cash)/debt (R&e) B FE (462,640) 1,440,625

Total equity MR BER 1,112,370 2,056,766

Total capital BB 1,112,370 3,497,391

As at 31 December 2020, the Group was in net cash
position. The Group’s gearing ratio as at 31 December
2019 was 41.2%. In the opinion of the Board, the
Group’s capital risk is not significant.

3.3 Fair value estimation

Financial instruments measured at fair value are
grouped into Levels 1 to 3, based on the degree to
which the fair value is observable, as follows:

° Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market
for identical assets or liabilities.

R2020F12A318 - AEEERFHE KR -
R2019F12A31B  AEBEZ2EARABEBLERE
412%  EFERAANEEERE 2EARRRTE

s FARAAEFEDNEHEREEXRGENE
BmiEH 2 HRECREHARE) G -
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.3  Fair value estimation (Cont’d)

. Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (ie prices) or indirectly (ie
derived from prices).

° Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs
for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Movements in the financial assets that are measured at
fair value during the year are as follows:

3. HMBEBREREE)

3.3 2QAREME(E)

. MAREFEDAEREERAGZI
T&E ﬁ%%ﬁf@ (HABR 28R REDE
&

REFNARAREAEZEREEZEFHNT :

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Wealth management products M EEEER B et 1 E=& &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET THET TET TET

At 1 January 2019 R®2019F181H - 37,358 4,671 42,029
Exchange differences | - (331) (103) (434)
Additions 2N S 63,398 59 63,457
Disposals & - (90,910) - (90,910)
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12A31H - 9,515 4,627 14,142
At 1 January 2020 #2020F181H - 9,515 4,627 14,142
Exchange differences bEHER - 625 304 929
Changes in fair value NREE - 228 104 332
At 31 December 2020 720205128318 - 10,368 5,035 15,403

See Note 15 for disclosures of the investment
properties that are measured at fair value.

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the carrying amounts
of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities,
including cash and cash equivalents, short-term
deposits, restricted cash, trade and other receivables
(excluding prepayments) less loss allowance for
impairment, bank and other borrowings, and trade
and other payables (excluding non-financial liabilities)
approximated their fair values due to their short
maturities.

FARMEISURAABHEZREMEZRE -

MN20205 M2019F 128318 BAE BN S R
BERGHABBEEEReARGEEY  RHF
FoEZBRHRe  MBRREEBEERENESRE
b R IBE(FE S RIERR D) - RITREMEE -
ZESREMENFIECGEEREBERINRERR
BIH - HEEMESREARBEMEE -
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS

4.1 Provision for inventories

In determining the amount of allowance required
for obsolete and slow-moving inventories, the Group
would evaluate ageing analysis of inventories and
compare the carrying amount of inventories to
their respective net realisable value. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in determining such
allowances. If conditions which have impact on the net
realisable value of inventories deteriorate, additional
allowances may be required.

4.2 Income tax and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income tax in different
jurisdictions. Estimation and judgment is required in
determining the amount of the provision for income
tax. There are transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recognised, such differences
will impact on the income tax and deferred taxation
provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

In accordance with the corporate income tax laws in
the PRC, a 10% withholding tax will be levied on the
dividend declared by the companies established in the
PRC to their foreign investors starting from 1 January
2008. During the year, the Board reassessed the
dividend policy of its major subsidiary established in the
PRC, CEC Huada Electronic Design Co., Ltd (“Huada
Electronics”) based on the Group’s current business
plan and financial position, certain retained earnings
generated by Huada Electronics would be distributed to
its non-PRC registered intermediate holding company
and as such, deferred tax liabilities in this respect was
provided in the year to the extent that such earnings
are estimated by the Board to be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

No deferred tax liability has been provided by the
Group for the earnings of HK$799,324,000 (2019:
HK$778,293,000) expected to be retained by the
subsidiaries in the PRC and not to be remitted out of
the PRC in the foreseeable future.

4. FEGGHETTRAE

41 FERE

BEETREMFHTEMTNRESHEE A&E
SHEEFENRESN Y BFENKRAESR
HEEMWAZRFE BEEZSEBRFHELK
EXE  MRUGFENERFEATENBRLE
b - ATRE TR BRI -

4.2 FBHRIELZERE

AEEERTRBDAERBMAEH - REEFT
SUHIERBz2BER - FBELMGE RAE - KA
BEBEREPHFERS MFEHHAETEHERRK
ZMBETE - M FFHRIERBHERERIN
AR SR REERNBERYERZM
BREETCHARBELETE -

RIEFBEMERMABHREZ - B2008F1A1HE @ &
BRI R EREEIMIEE D KB
WI0%M A/ - RAFAR  EFFGENK
SERE R 8 RPN B FAR KL T
BezrB2MBEARILRTEEAETFRIBRE
ERAB([EXREF)MREBE  EAETH
ETRE A0 K T E BRI P REER A
A Bt NEBEFSMAFRAI ALK KD K 4
MAER RAFERARELEHREAERBELR
e

AEBUERTERATEMBARNRBEETER
Al B AR R ok 5 B3R SN & 58 A799,324,000
7 7T (20194F : 778,293,00058 7T.) B % F| B 45 iR
ERIBBEE -
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (Cont’d)

4.3 Provision for expected credit losses
on trade receivables

Except for certain trade receivable from customers
with specific credit risk that management adopts an
individual impairment assessment approach, the Group
uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on the past
due days for groupings of various customer segments
that have similar loss patterns (ie by geographical
region, product type, customer type and rating).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's
historical observed default rates. The Group will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information. For
instance, if forecast economic conditions (ie gross
domestic products) are expected to deteriorate over
the next year which can lead to an increased number
of defaults, the historical default rates are adjusted.
At each reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may
also not be representative of customer’s actual default
in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in Note 19 to the
financial statements.

4. FEEHETIRHEK(E)

43 EBZRVBRERHMEEBREZEE

RERERAGHTEEARETRARFNE
5 M8 5B IR P B B R BT £ % 5) + AR E
R 8 UE R 8 5 OB e TR AR S B RS -
BEE AR BLUBEL AN TAESESE (5
BIOE  EQEY  BEPEURIA) 22HEA
BHH -

BRERESNERASENELBRENE - X
SEERBMNEUEER URBRELEEBRK
B M AERERE o fign - AR TR AV AR (BN
NEERE) BERR—FABIL B EEH
BAOBERN BREHNRBSRAE - EBR
TH BELXERIMEORBEREN Lo
RIBE A ET R B 1L -

HELEBRINNEHR - TR N IEH
EEEEZENHEBENFEE —BERNG
Ao RHEEBENSBEERRNHEC LI
REMRRBRHRE ANEBNELEEBERERK
HEERRNTRRA B A EEARERARAREFHNE
RENBR - BEAAKREE 5 EBUFANELRE
EREMNERBRBERPBRAME9 -
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (Cont’d)

4.4 Fair value of investment properties

During the year, the Board assessed the principal
assumptions underlying management’s estimation
of fair value of investment properties of the Group.
The fair value of investment properties are assessed
annually by an independent professional valuer. The
valuation is principally based on direct comparison
method by taking into account the terms of any
existing leases and other external evidence such as
current market rents or sales for similar types of
properties in the locality, and using capitalisation rates
that reflect current market expectation for the assets
being valued. The valuation techniques and significant
assumptions of investment properties are disclosed in
Note 15.

4.5 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the statement
of financial position date. Non-financial assets are
tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset
or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs
of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the
fair value less costs of disposal is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management
has to estimate the expected future cash flows from
the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.

4. FEGHETIRHAEK(E)

4.4 RKREVELAAE

FA EFGTMEEEBHAREREVELR
BEFAZIERR REVMEZAAEESFAMH
BYEXMAEMELTG ZEEITBERNER
HBOE » SEAERRIRABL 2GR R EAMINMEE
BRI AR NE 2 RETSEHEEH
HEEBR) LEARREMEBECEEZRRFEM
SR ERCLL R E - REVMEZHETTE
REBRREEM TSP KE -

45 FEMEERE
AEERMBEIRRKXBHFFEMEIEREER

TREEMNREER  AETRENR - BES
ERE-REEX—HAASELENNKRAER
BEAKEEER  fTEREENEAALERD
EXRAREFERABENRSE - AR BEREEX
AZERBEEATFRGTRAHNRNNEER S
MASRELAABENERLEEENIEZERA
AE-EEEMECRERR A EEXR
TELBUNEFARRERE - BRMEERR
BERAFEZFHERENRE -
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT

5. WA K2 =& %

INFORMATION
(a) Revenue (@) WA
Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET F& T
Sale of integrated circuit products HEEKERE R 1,324,556 1,695,486

All the revenue of the Group are from sale of goods,
which is recognised at a point in time when control of
the goods is transferred to the customers.

(b) Operating segments

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the Board (the chief
operating decision maker) that are used to assess
performance and allocate resources. The Board assesses
the performance of an operating segment based on a
measure of its operating profit excluding unallocated
corporate income and expenses.

The Board considers that the Group’s operations
are operated and managed as a single segment and
accordingly, no operating segment information is
presented.

Revenues of HK$373,222,000, HK$225,583,000,
HK$184,946,000 and HK$138,444,000 (2019:
HK$373,768,000, HK$344,619,000 and
HK$191,665,000), respectively, derived from 4 (2019:
3) external customers of the Group have exceeded 10%
of the revenue of the Group. Save as disclosed herein,
no revenue derived from a single external customer has
exceeded 10% of the revenue of the Group.

Nearly 100% of the Group’s revenue is attributable
to the market in the PRC and over 90% of the
Group’s non-current assets are located in the PRC. No
geographical information is therefore presented.

AEERMANBARBHEESER  NRBEMK
ZHIREBER PR ER

(b) EE7IR

EEECREEFRS (TBLERKE) CEHNE
AERBARDEERANRE  BELE ‘ﬁli
EZgRBELENMZBLEN (TEBERD
HARA RS UFFEERSE -

EFEeARAEBEZEBUNE-—DHEER
2 MU ERBELEDHLEFR -

il

DRIREAREE 4% (2019F : 3R) INA R
F & $£373,222,0007% JT * 225,583,000/ 7T °
184,946,000 JT % 138,444,000/ 7t (2019
% : 373,768,000/ T * 344,619,000/8 7t &
191,665,000 L) W ABBAEBRKAZ
10% °c RANCFTIRBRE SN - WREAM KRB B —H
AP ZBABBAREBERAZIO% -

5 30 75 4 (B4 T 100% 2 I A B B 3 b B 7 45 L
HBE0% Y R B A EM NP E - B E R B
B AR
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6. HaA

6. OTHER INCOME

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31MBLEE

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FHET

Government grants B8RS 7 B 21,100 10,179

Fair value gains on financial assets BAnEFAER

at fair value through profit or loss EHMEEANERE 332 957
Gains on disposal of financial assets HERAAREFARR

at fair value through profit or loss BEEE R - 1,722

Gain on modification of lease fEeR & W = 863 -

Gain on disposal of a building in the PRC & — R NP EAEF K= - 9,122

Interest income B U A 11,122 9,819

Rental income el A 2,432 2,434

Others H it 304 677

36,153 34,910

7. EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and

7. RUEEIESZEAR

SIFESHERA « SHE RIS HEEKAMITERRAX

marketing costs and administrative expenses are BRI
analysed as follows:
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31MBLLEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Depreciation and amortisation expenses TEREHEER
(Notes 13 and 16) (H1iz13%16) 33,451 44,209
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 14) (£ A EEITE (f/it14) 26,834 21,670
Employee benefit expenses (Note 8) BE®MAZ (AiLs) 180,951 160,998
Changes in inventories of finished goods &Kk ERBTFELZH
and work in progress 33,900 135,952
Raw materials used and outsourcing FTRARME RINEE A
expenses 815,599 994,449
Provision for inventories (Note 19) FEZBEHF19) 24,566 28,586
Rental expenses for short-term leases and RHHEEREKEBEEEEHEHRS
leases of low-value asset =53 35 5,623
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEN B &
— Audit services — B RT 3,007 2,548
— Non-audit services —EEZIRE 574 -
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7. EXPENSES BY NATURE (Cont’d)

Research and development costs for the year ended
31 December 2020 were HK$211,995,000 (2019:
HK$221,746,000) and mainly comprised of employee
costs of HK$103,627,000 (2019: HK$111,896,000)
and material costs of HK$52,597,000 (2019:
HK$61,311,000). No research and development costs
were capitalised during the year ended 31 December
2020 (2019: nil).

8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

7. RUBEISZER(E)

HZE2020F12A31AEFE2HERBAERAE
211,995,000/ 7T (20194F : 221,746,000/ 7T
TEBFEEE K A103,627,000/% 7T (20194 :
111,896,000/%8 jT) & # kK Z852,597,000/8 7T
(20194 : 61,311,000/ 7T) > REIE2020%12H
BMHEFERN WEMFTERBAERATFILE R
(20194 : #) -

8. EERAMAX

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAETT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ &  ERE LR EWEF 173,989 143,583
Contributions to retirement schemes RIRETEIVE R (A it (a) X (b))

(Notes (a) and (b)) 6,962 17,415

180,951 160,998

(a) The Group operates a MPF Scheme for the
eligible employees in Hong Kong. The Group's
contributions to MPF Scheme are expensed as
incurred.

(b)  The Company’s PRC subsidiaries participate in a
defined contribution retirement scheme based
on laws and regulations in the PRC. The local
government authority of the PRC is responsible
for the pension liabilities to these retired
employees in the PRC. These PRC subsidiaries
made contributions to retirement schemes in
the PRC and are expensed as incurred.

() *FEERETESEREERIRES
g - AEEYRE S 2 HANELER
FIMERST °

(b) ARFEHBEZHMEBRRRESREDED K
RPI2EEREFRAKEE - PEBRM
TRFHEREZETERKER ZRIK
SEME - 2FPENE QR RKGBIE
HERAEREERFFIEFR
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8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(Cont’d)

(c) Five highest paid individuals

Total emoluments paid to the five highest paid
individuals of the Group during the year are as follows:

8. EE®AMAX(E)

(0 ITEZEEFMAL

FAXNTAEELEERTFMA LT 2EME M
T

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A3MBLEE

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FHET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ~ ¥r& * 2R X EYE N 4,449 4,287
Bonuses TE4T 7.884 4,266
Contributions to retirement schemes RORET IR 796 1,131
13,129 9,684

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals
included one director of the Company (2019: one) and
their emoluments were within the following bands:

AEAESFMALBE—R (2019F : —F) AR
REEMEEZMEN FUATEHE :

Number of individuals

AE
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7t — 2,000,0005% 7T - 3
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T — 2,500,000 7T 2 2
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7t — 3,000,000 7T 2 -
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7t — 3,500,000/ 7T 1 -
5 5

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office.

FRAEESERAOLKEHMA L AAEMA
e E RN AN B kN B 2 REh Sk ERBE(E
ZHME -
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9 FINANCE COSTS - NET

9. RBEMAE-FHE

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31MBLEE

2020 2019
2020%F 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FA&ETT

Finance costs: BB R -
— Interest expense on borrowings —BEZMEXZH 97,590 100,624
— Interest expense on lease liabilities —-HHEaGE s FMESH 2,787 2,757
100,377 103,381

Finance income: REUWA :

— Interest income — R B U A (6,437) (2,074)
Finance costs — net REKA—F58 93,940 101,307
10. TAXATION 10. HiE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLtLEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F& T
Current taxation R EFLIA
— PRC corporate income tax —hEPEMEH 10,291 5,395
— Withholding tax on distributed profits —BE D BEA 2 B FEH
(Note (c)) (K15 () 5,218 8,523
15,509 13,918
Deferred taxation BRI IE
— PRC corporate income tax —FEEMEH (4,986) (4,938)
— Withholding tax on undistributed profits — &% Btia M 2 B FTEHE
(Note (c)) (B1at(c) (1,705) (11,776)
(6,691) (16,714)
8,818 (2,796)
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10.
(a)

(b)

(c)

118

TAXATION (Cont’d)

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax had
been made as the Group did not generate any

assessable profit in Hong Kong for the year
ended 31 December 2020 (2019: nil).

In accordance with the corporate income
tax laws of the PRC, the applicable
statutory tax rate of Huada Electronics and
Shanghai Huahong Integrated Circuit Co.,
Ltd (“Huahong"”) is 25%. However, Huada
Electronics and Huahong qualified as an
“Integrated Circuit Design Enterprises in
National Planning Layout” (“ICDE") for
the year ended 31 December 2020 and
thus enjoyed a 10% preferential tax rate
(2019: 10% preferential tax rate). Based on
management’s self-assessment and their track
record of success in obtaining such types of
qualifications, it is highly likely that Huada
Electronics will continue to qualify as an ICDE
and Huahong will qualify as a “High and New
Technology Enterprise” after the year ended 31
December 2020 and thus will enjoy a 10% and
a 15% preferential tax rate, respectively.

According to the relevant regulations of the
corporate income tax laws of the PRC, when
a foreign investment enterprise in the PRC
distributes dividends out of the profits earned
from 1 January 2008 onwards to its overseas
investors, such dividends are subject to
withholding tax at a rate of 10%.

10.
(a)

(b)

(c)

B (&

AR EBNE E2020F12A318 IEFE
EREBTEELETMERTOERN - &I
Wt EBFE T EE (20195 - #) o

RBEFETEMSHENBATE  EAE

MEBENEREREREELR ([
i) ZEAEEREAB25% A » H=E
2020F12A31H L FEEAREFRET
B TERREHBRNEXBERTE]
(BAREXNBIEBTEE]) BRE - Bz
RETMNETZFI10%ZEBEFE (2019
F10%2BEMREK) EREEEMNH
BT HUARBEKRINESZERER
REE2020F12831B ILFE 2% - =
AETHRAUGCEEESERERER
RACEERNEMBES SFRME
¥|ERTEAMBDRNZEB10%KX15%2
BEME -

BIBEFBRCEMESRENBBRE AR
BAZINEIRECEUREREEINEE
EHEB2008F1A1EHRREEN & F -
ZER B BHMI0%NTENATET -
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10. TAXATION (Cont'd) 10. BB (&

(d)  Reconciliation between the taxation on the (d) AEBKRB (BB, &z HEERE
Group’s (loss)/profit before taxation and the EZRBREEREMAE 2 BmMIE 28
theoretical taxation that would arise using the R
respective applicable statutory tax rates is as
follows:

Year ended 31 December
BZ12831BLLEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
(Loss)/profit before taxation BrEE AT (B518) i A (1,002,306) 154,790
Calculated at respective applicable REBHEAEEMEFE
statutory tax rates ZTHIB 4,159 33,529
Effect of tax concession B R 2 & (18,639) (36,243)
Research and development costs T 7¢ K B 2 B AR BR AN BR
additional deductions (13,118) (14,717)
Income not subject to tax HARBUA (431) (15,973)
Expenses not deductible for taxation TAIHBFAX
purposes 24,105 23,893
Effect of change in tax rate on deferred MESHUELEHBELZE
taxation (777) (285)
Withholding tax on distributed profits EoiaNRAER
and current year’s undistributed profits R BN 2 B AT 3,513 5,270
Tax losses for which no deferred tax WEBERELEHEEEZ
asset was recognised MIEEE 4,007 1,730
Under provision on taxation in prior years AR E M RIBEE T B 5,999 -
Taxation I8 8,818 (2,796)

(e) Deferred taxation

(e) EZEHIE

31 December

31 December

2020 2019

202012H31H 2019412A31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FA&TT

Deferred tax assets BEHEEE 50,615 42,120
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEEE (12,474) (12,923)
38,141 29,197

MEEFEANKERARA 2020FF3% 119



Notes to the Consolidated Financi

e M MRME

al Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H L F/E
10. TAXATION (Cont'd) 10. WHIE (&
(e) Deferred taxation (Cont'd) (e) EEWHE(E
The movements in the deferred tax assets and liabilities fisd N5t R K 3H B AR A B IS R 2 BRFE - FARIE
during the year without taking into consideration the MEEEMBEZESHOT :
offsetting of balances with the same taxation authority
are as follows:
Salary and
Impairment welfare Deferred
of payables government
inventories LR grants Others Total
Deferred tax assets BERBEE FERE NEN EERRHY Hit &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TET TAER TET TAR
At 1 January 2019 R2019E181A 7,516 3,661 5,656 21,191 38,024
Exchange differences ERES (222) (80) (129) (489) (920)
Credited to the statement of profit or loss BeBER 3,251 23 281 1,461 5,016
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12A318 10,545 3,604 5,808 22,163 42,120
At 1 January 2020 #20205181H 10,545 3,604 5,808 22,163 42,120
Exchange differences ERER 833 264 448 1,472 3,017
Credited to the statement of profit or loss BeERER 2,762 573 1,332 81 5,478
At 31 December 2020 R2020512831R 14,140 4,441 7,588 24,446 50,615
Withholding
tax on
undistributed
Fair value profits
gains Ko EER Total
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE AREWRE ZFEHNFEHR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TALT THETX
At 1 January 2019 20191818 2,619 21,892 24,511
Exchange differences =% 379 (269) 110
Charged to the statement of profit or loss FABHER 78 5,270 5,348
Reclassification to current income tax payable EHDEZE % B FTS 5 IB = (17,046) (17,046)
At 31 December 2019 ®2019%12831H 3,076 9,847 12,923
At 1 January 2020 R2020F1H1A 3,076 9,847 12,923
Exchange differences b =% 226 537 763
Charged to the statement of profit or loss SFABER 493 3,513 4,006
Reclassification to current income tax payable =5 3% & HfE [ Fr1S T 1B - (5,.218)  (5,218)
At 31 December 2020 12020128318 3,795 8,679 12,474

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carrying forwards to the extent that the realisation
of the related tax benefit through the future
taxable profits is probable. At 31 December 2020,
the Group did not recognise deferred tax assets of
HK$69,478,000 (2019: HK$64,863,000) in respect
of tax losses amounting to HK$413,876,000 (2019:
HK$393,111,000) that can be carried forward against
future taxable income. Tax losses of HK$399,890,000
has no expiry date (2019: HK$385,961,000), and
HK$13,986,000 will expire within 5 years (2019:
HK$7,150,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 124318 Lt F/E

11. DIVIDEND

1. RE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FHET

Proposed dividend EERE = 46,687

The Board does not recommend the payment of a
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
HK2.3 cents per share).

12. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings per share is
based on the following data:

EEeTEEREZ2020FE12A31B ILEE RN
A% 8 (20194 : &A%2.3781l) »

12. B8R (EEB) ZA
FAREA (B518) /B A VIR E THI St & -

sHT

Year ended 31 December

BZ12831BLLEE

2020 2019
20204 20194

(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to AKARIERFEERLZ
owners of the Company (HK$'000) NEE (BE), 88 (F45T) (1,013,263) 155,159

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purposes of basic (loss)/
earnings per share

Basic (loss)/earnings per share (HK cents)

FREXR(EE) &7 GBI)

R EBRER(BER)
ANz ERkNEF8A

2,029,872,000 2,029,872,000
(49.92) 7.64

No diluted (loss)/earnings per share is presented as the
Company did not have any potential dilutive ordinary
share outstanding.

BRAR A EEFRBEITEESE S LR
WA EGREE (BB BT -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 12 A31B It F /&

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥M¥ -BEERXR®E
Buildings and
leasehold
improvements Plant and Motor Furniture  Construction
BER machinery vehicles  and fixtures in progress Total
HENELE  HEREE Bf  GfREE HEIR At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn
Year ended 31 December 2019 BEN9ENANBLEE
Opening net book amount ENREFE 315,128 35,709 1375 1,89 13,491 367,599
Exchange differences ERER (1.727) (643) (20 (34) (295) (2,119
Additions WE 7,053 3,169 - 649 - 10,871
Disposals RE (275,684) (278) = (16) = (275,978)
Depreciation ik (24,270) (10,827) (524) (999) = (36,620)
Closing net book amount EXRAFE 20,500 27130 831 1,496 13,1% 63,153
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12831H
Cost AR 69,694 114,022 7,360 9,098 13,19 213,370
Accumulated depreciation ZiE (49,194) (86,892) (6,529) (7,602) = (150,217)
Net book amount BERE 20,500 27130 831 1,496 13,196 63,153
Year ended 31 December 2020 B22205128310 L EE
Opening net book amount EUEESE 20,500 27,130 831 1,496 13,196 63,153
Exchange differences ERzE 1,156 1,437 26 82 122 2,823
Additions RE - 3,694 - 343 3,044 7,081
Transfer upon completion TIER 2,757 198 - - (2,955) -
Redlassification (Note 76) EREWi16) (356) - - - - (356)
Disposals RE - (94) - - (13,076) (13,170)
Depreciation bk (5.325) (9,334) (482) (606) - (15,747)
Closing net book amount FREAFE 18,732 23,031 375 1,315 331 43,784
At 31 December 2020 R2020E12831A
Cost A 76,713 123,987 1,415 10,039 331 218,485
Accumulated depreciation ZiE (57,981) (100,956) (7,040) (8,724) - (174,701)
Net book amount EmFE 18,732 23,031 375 1315 331 43,784

Depreciation expense of HK$62,000 (2019: HK$1,427,000),
HK$46,000 (2019: HK$3,447,000) and HK$15,639,000
(2019: HK$31,746,000) has been charged to selling
and marketing costs, cost of sales and administrative

expenses, respectively.
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 124318 It F/E

14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 14. FRHEEE
Year ended 31 December
HZ12A3MBLEE
2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBxT FHETT
Beginning of the year F9 52,908 2,614
Exchange differences MEHER 3,757 10
Additions NE 20,233 89,852
Effect of rental reduction AR E - (17,898)
Effect of modification of lease BN EH: 12,995 -
Depreciation e (26,834) (21,670)
End of the year FR 63,059 52,908
15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. BREWYHE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2020 2019
2020%F 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Beginning of the year F9 48,291 48,847
Exchange differences PE =% 3,113 (1,078)
Changes in fair value NRAEEE 90 522
End of the year FR 51,494 48,291

(a)

(b)

(@]

The investment properties are located in the
PRC and are subject to various tenancies with
terms ranging from 1 year to 3 years.

The rental income from investment
properties for the year ended 31 December
2020 amounted to HK$2,432,000 (2019:
HK$2,434,000).

The fair value of the Group’s investment
properties at 31 December 2020 have been
arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out on that date by Beijing Zhou Xin Da Hua
Appraisal Co., Ltd, a firm of independent and
qualified professional valuers not connected
with the Group. The valuation was principally
based on direct comparison method by taking
into account the terms of any existing leases
and other external evidence such as current
market rents or sales for similar types of
properties in the locality, and using capitalisation
rates that reflect current market expectation
for the assets being valued. For all investment
properties, their current uses represent the
highest and best use.

SREYEHUNTEL AN EIFHZ

(a) z
HHAOFE -

N\
K}

(b) REE2020FE12A31BILEEE  1BEY
WS UW A E2,432,00078 7T (20194 -
2,434,000/ 7T) °

(0 AEBEREYEN2020F12A31HZ A
S (B TY i B 58 [ AT ] R (R RO 98 5L B
ARABRNEREER — L RBEXNE
BEFEARDAINE AETHEE - &b
EEXREREELBOL T ATAREM
49 2 A6 T Lt 51 58 4R (4070 Y 3 3t B
FARA Y X 2 B T I5H S HHEERE)
WiERRREFAEEEE RETISE
Bz BA L ERFHE - MAREYMRAE
HBEBEAREERAZBRERS
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15.
(@

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont’d)
(Cont’d)

At 31 December 2020, all of the fair value
measurements of the Group’'s investment
properties were categorised into Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy. Details of fair value
hierarchy classification are set out in Note
3.3. There were no transfers of fair value
measurements into or out of Level 3 during the
year.

At the end of the reporting period, the
management of the Group works with Beijing
Zhou Xin Da Hua Appraisal Co., Ltd to establish
and determine the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs for Level 3 fair value
measurements. Where there is a material
change in the fair value of the assets, the causes
of the fluctuations will be reported to the Board.

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) is as follows:

Fair value at 31

15. REWE(E)
© (&)

R2020F12A31H  REEFRABKREY
(¥NARENEHBREEALARBERRIER
ME=H - RAERFIRBEHDEFIBESE
R33N - REARN - ZFEREWETL
EARNEFEEARELE=R -

RIEER - AEEERERILREEA
FAETGEARARNLARY REEHEA
E=W2 DA AN ENEETE RIS -
HEEAAEEREARD BAEEE
FE 375 B 4 R o

EREANBNBR BIEEALEHE (B
BBHBEBERTT -

Range of
unobservable Relationship of
inputs/weighted unobservable inputs to

December 2020 Valuation Unobservable average fair value
Description 72020512831 technique(s) inputs BB HES BUBESYSEEAAE
=15 BeRnfE “ERE BUBRHE B/ METLHE HER
HK$'000
TET
Office building and 51,494 Direct Market price RMB31,198 The higher the market
carparks — Beijing comparison M5 EK per square metre  price, the higher the
BrENEU—It R method HEHK  fair value
BERLBE AR%31,198T mEERES DAE
)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 124318 Lt F/E

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

16. EFEE

Computer
software
EEIg s
HK$'000
FET
Year ended 31 December 2019 BZ2019F12A31B L E
Opening net book amount FYREFEE 2,059
Exchange differences ERER (45)
Additions NE 7,536
Amortisation 5 (7,589)
Closing net book amount FORREFE 1,961
At 31 December 2019 A2019%12831H
Cost B AR 9,942
Accumulated amortisation E 5T (7,981)
Net book amount REFE 1,961
Year ended 31 December 2020 HZ2020F12831BLEE
Opening net book amount FYIREFE 1,961
Exchange differences ERER 1,916
Reclassification (Note 13) ENE(KE13) 356
Additions NE 49,320
Amortisation 5 (17,704)
Closing net book amount FARBREFE 35,849
At 31 December 2020 A2020%F12H31H
Cost (DN 63,038
Accumulated amortisation RET# 5 (27,189)
Net book amount RHEFE 35,849
Amortisation expense amounting to HK$17,704,000 B 3HF 217,704,000/ 7T (20194F : 7,589,000/8
(2019: HK$7,589,000) has been charged to research T B ATHRBEXE TN 2T KA AT -

and development costs under administrative expenses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 12 A31B It F /&

17. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES 17. REBERITRE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Beginning of the year F1) 2,707,889 2,665,777
Share of the effect of adoption JEAEER N E 7B
of HKFRS16 B 7 5 A A
F16HMATE - 43,322
Share of results FEIEE4E 91,293 121,000
— Post-acquisition profit — W B 12 0% A 91,293 114,653
— Loss on cancellation of —— R E R E 2 EE
subsidiaries of an associate iog== NG g = (621)
- Gain on anti-dilution of interest ——EBERR RS
in an associate WS - 6,968
Exchange differences fE X Z & 151,206 (60,440)
Dividend % 2 (63,845) (63,923)
Share of currency translation differences  fE{h g ¥R E =58 (8.824) 2,153
Disposal HE (2,861,783) -
End of the year FR 15,936 2,707,889

Particulars of the associates at 31 December 2020 and

2019 are as follows:

Place of establishment

N T FR20204F 2019128318 215w

T

Principal place of

Name and type of legal entity operation and activities Paid-in capital Interest held
£8 RIBHERAFAME TEQERURES BhER friggs
31 December 2020
2020124314
Beijing Chipadvanced Technology Inc. PRC, limited liability company ~ PRC, provision of integrated RMB57,907,381 7.29%
IRBZRERNERAH wE EREAAT circuit testing services AEH57,907,3817T
P REEHERNARSE

31 December 2019
2019124314
China Electronics Optics Valley Union Cayman Islands, limited PRC, development of theme HK$757,435,200 33.67%

Holding Company Limited ("CEOVU") liability company industrial parks in the PRC 757,435,200 1T
REAAMAERERAA FeHS ARELEAA and related businesses

(FEXA]) PE RPEREIEEXERN

ERIEBRK

Beijing Chipadvanced Technology Inc. PRC, limited liability company ~ PRC, provision of integrated RMB57,907,381 7.29%
ERBEHERNBRAF e EREEAR circuit testing services AR%57,907,3817

PE - RESKERNARE
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 124318 Lt F/E

17. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES 17. REEQARRE(#F)

(Cont’d)
There are no contingent liabilities relating to the 72020512 A31 B ARE BB & A R m 1008
Group’s interest in associate at 31 December 2020 EXEBE(2019F : &) -
(2019: nil).
On 27 November 2020, the Group disposed of R2020F 118278 @ X" & B U Y B
33.67% of the issued share capital of CEOVU for a 1,785,000,000/8 7Tt HE R EH D 233.67%0 2
consideration of HK$1,785,000,000. Details of the loss TTREAR o HEREXARZ33.67%EBITRAZE
on disposal of 33.67% of the issued share capital of BHEBHOT :

CEOVU are as follows:

Disposal of
an associate
HE—E
B & N Al
HK$'000
FET
Consideration less transaction costs HERZSHKA 1,779,737
Carrying value of the investment of 33.67% FEHXALZ33.67%2BITRA
of the issued share capital of CEOVU R2020F 11 27 2 EREE
as at 27 November 2020 (2,861,783)
Release of accumulated translation reserves #H 202011 H27H 2
as at 27 November 2020 e N FHE 1,196
Loss on disposal of an associate HE—HBEAREE (1,080,850)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z£2020F 12 A31HIFFE
17. REEQARKRE (F)

17. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

(Cont’d)

The Board is of the opinion that CEOVU was material to
the Group as at 31 December 2019. Set out below are

R2019F12A31H  EFERAPEXRAYAE
EmMsBEZ HEXANEMNBARZTKE

the summarised financial information of CEOVU and its BT
subsidiaries:
31 December
2019
201912 H31H
HK$'000
FAETT
Current E
Assets BE 13,363,373
Liabilities =R (4,591,049)
Non-current kB
Assets BE 7,107,684
Liabilities BfE (6,870,947)
Net assets BEFE 9,009,061
Net assets attributable to owners of CEOVU BERNTEAAEREAEECEEFE 7,865,811
Investment in an associate RN—EBERTIRE 2,693,919
Year ended
31 December
2019
HZE2019%F
12A318 L& E
HK$'000
F& T
Revenue WA 3,875,841
Profit for the year attributable to REERNEFBRNFELA
owners of CEOVU R AE 426,661
Other comprehensive income for the year: RNEFEHE A2 H W
Currency translation differences BEMMmEEE 6,419
Total comprehensive income for the AFEEHNBERFBR
year attributable to owners of CEOVU PEAARRITEE 433,080
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 124318 Lt F/E
18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. EBEZRHMEWNIE
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
2020%12831H 2019912 A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAETT
Trade receivables =7 &0 594,541 727,905
Less: Loss allowance for Ji B E R (M b))
impairment (Note (b)) (86,625) (71,016)
Trade receivables — net B REIWHRIE - F58 507,916 656,889
Other receivables from third parties H bW S =7 2 5,826 22,514
Less: Loss allowance for Ji OB ERE (i)
impairment (Note (c)) (1,910) (567)
Other receivables from third parties HMERE=RE T8
- net 3,916 21,947
Other receivables from related parties  E i & W B B 75 5018
(Note 31) (BraE31) 9,367 1,094
Undeducted input value-added tax RANBR B ETHIR B
and prepaid tax SSEANE TR 19,041 14,229
Prepayments and deposits BNFERES 3,742 19,426
543,982 713,585
Less: non-current receivables Ji FER B M GRIR (1,627) -
542,355 713,585
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 12 A31B It F /&

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Cont’d)

Trade and other receivables were unsecured and
interest-free. Included in the balance of trade
receivables are trade receivables from related parties of
HK$58,736,000 (2019: HK$71,477,000) (Note 31).

Trade and other receivables of the Group at 31
December 2020 and 2019 were denominated in the
following currencies:

18. EFRHMEWRE(Z)

EoREMBBRREBYAERFRE S 5T A
EoRWARELEBAZEB T ESEKKEE
58,736,000/ T (20194 : 71,477,000/ t) (K1
Ft31) o

NEBR2020F K2019F12A31H 28 5 K A
thEWRZIEIEEEESMT ¢

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

20205128318 20199 12A31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHEx FHETT

Renminbi AR 543,441 712,860
Hong Kong dollars AT 541 536
US dollars EIT - 189
543,982 713,585

(a) The majority of the Group’s sales are with (a) AEBZHEATMZEEHA30HE

credit terms of 30 days to 135 days. The
remaining amounts are due immediately after
the delivery of goods. The ageing analysis of
trade receivables (net of loss allowance for
impairment) presented based on the revenue
recognition date is as follows:

135H EREERERER XK
Hy o IRIBUAFERR B SR E 5 R UGKIR
(IR BERBERE) WRESTOT

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

2020F12831H 2019412 A31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAETT

Current to 30 days 30HA 114,637 307,117
31 - 60 days 31HZ=60H 71,648 86,898
61 — 180 days 61HZ=180H 250,734 158,620
Over 180 days and within 1 year 180H A ER1F R 49,245 94,478
Over 1 year 1A+ 21,652 9,776
507,916 656,889
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 124318 It F/E

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. ESZRHMEWRIE(Z)
(Cont’d)
(b) Movements in the loss allowance for (b) AEEEFHERFBRESEREZE
impairment of the Group’s trade receivables are w
as follows:
Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31MBLLEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
Beginning of the year F 1) 71,016 65,402
Impairment losses, net FOR B E B 10,453 7,171
Exchange differences PE X Z=RE 5,156 (1,557)
End of the year FR 86,625 71,016

At 31 December 2020, the gross carrying
amount of trade receivables measured at
amortised cost was HK$391,858,000 (2019:
HK$510,887,000), of which HK$285,119,000
(2019: HK$434,468,000) was within one
year with expected credit loss rate of 0.1%,
HK$22,519,000 (2019: HK$6,624,000) was
between one year to five years with expected
credit loss rate ranging from 5.1% to 68.5%,
HK$20,602,000(2019: HK$22,234,000) was
over five years with expected credit loss
rate of 100.0%, and HK$63,618,000 (2019:
HK$47,561,000) was from customers with
specific credit risk with expected credit loss rate
of 100.0% (2019: 100.0%).

2020123310 B EK AT EH
B 5 MW F B R 42 {8 5391,858,000
# 7T (20194 : 510,887,000/ 7T) -
2 Bl E285,119,000/ 7T (20194
434,468,000/87C) B1F R - BHEES
BEAE0.1% * 22,519,000/8 7T (20194 :
6,624,000 7T) B1EE5F  FEHEE
BB RN F5.1%%E68.5% * 20,602,000
7 70 (20194F : 22,234,0007 JT) AS54F
WE FEEEEEBIERXA100.0% ' &
63,618,000/ 7T (20194F : 47,561,000/
TT)RERERFTRBANEE  HHEE
BT & 5100.0% (20194F : 100.0%) °
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. BZRHMEWKIEZ)
(Cont’d)
(c) Movements in the loss allowance for () AREBHMEWRIBREBEREZZ
impairment of the Group’s other receivables are wm
as follows:
Year ended 31 December
HZ12A3MBLEE
2020 2019
2020%F 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FHETT
Beginning of the year F9) 567 348
Impairment losses BEEE 1,237 231
Exchange differences PE H ZE %R 106 (12)
End of the year FR 1,910 567

Other receivables are mainly rental deposits,
deposits with suppliers and advance to
employees. Majority of the above balances relate
to receivables for which there was no recent
history of default. In the situation where no
comparable companies with credit ratings can be
identified, expected credit losses are estimated by
applying a loss rate approach with reference to
the historical loss record of the Group. The loss
rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions,
as appropriate. The loss rate applied for such
receivables at 31 December 2020 was 38.6%
(2019: 4.6%).

HEmEWHRETE A KRS - I(THE
EiRe RFEMEE A - W EREH &%
MW EAHEANCHENERGEER -
EELEZNAGETILZNAT L RAFNE
AT EBHEEEEERAFTHALELREE
BEBERSNERR A RETHE - 5
BEREELAZRURMIBITRI KRR
EEAR B TER (RRE ) o itk FE UK
TH20205FE 1283 1B FrEAMERR A
38.6% (20194F : 4.6%) °

19. INVENTORIES 19. #FE&
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
2020%F12H31H 2019412 A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FATT
Work in progress & 167,762 171,287
Finished goods RUEK G 332,348 289,326
500,110 460,613

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and
included in cost of sales amounted to HK$849,499,000
(2019: HK$1,130,401,000).

Provision for inventories of HK$24,566,000 (2019:
HK$28,586,000) has been charged to cost of sales.
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20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

200 BAREFARZESMEE

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

20205128318 20194 12A31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

Wealth management products MEEEEM® 15,403 14,142

The wealth management products are issued
by commercial banks in the PRC. These wealth
management products are principal protected and
with non-guaranteed return. They are denominated
in Renminbi and can be redeemed either at any time
or at certain time within three months. The fair values
of these investments were determined with reference
to either the statements provided by the commercial
banks or discounted cash flow method.

21